
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
MONDAY, JUNE 8, 2020 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 
ELECTRONIC MEETING VIA ZOOM 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PROCLAMATIONS:

1. LaRue Evans.

VII. PRESENTATIONS:

1. Neuse River Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan.

VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Ange Plaza Lot 21 Annexation.

2. Evergreen Construction Company Rezoning Request.

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

X. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
 May 11, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes;
 May 26, 2020 Budget Work Session Minutes;
 May 27, 2020 Budget Work Session Minutes; and
 June 1, 2020 Budget Public Hearing Minutes.

2. Merizio Property Rezoning Request – Schedule Public Hearing.
3. Pitt County Shrine Club Rezoning Request – Schedule Public Hearing.
4. Budget Amendment 2019-2020-7.



XI. NEW BUSINESS:

1. 2020-2021 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance.

2. School Resource Officer (SRO) Contract between the Town of Winterville and Pitt County
Schools

3. Reverter Clause for Parcel Number 23091 – Habitat for Humanity of Pitt County

4. Highway 11 Right of Way and Ditch Mowing Contract.

5. Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project: Engineering Contract Amendment #1.

6. Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project: Chatham Civil Contracting Change Order #1.

7. 2020 Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation Project: Award Engineering Contract.

8. Ange Plaza Lots 20 & 21: Final Plat.

9. Board of Adjustment Member Appointments.

10. Planning and Zoning Board Member Appointments.

11. Recreation Advisory Board Member Appointments.

12. Stormwater Advisory Board Member Appointments.

13. Updated Funding for the Winterville Watermelon Festival

XII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS:

XIII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS:

XIV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS:

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP)
 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS)
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS)
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ)
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ)
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW)
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW)
 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW)
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW)
 Cemetery (BW)

XV. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, June 23, 2020; 6:30 pm – Operation Center.

2. Happy Birthday USA Market: Thursday, July 2, 2020; 4 – 8 pm – Town Square.

3. Town Offices Closed: Friday, July 3, 2020 for the Independence Day Holiday.

4. No Town Council Meeting: July 13, 2020.

XVI. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVII. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours 
prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Proclamations 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: LaRue M. Evans. 

Action Requested: Approval of Proclamation. 

Attachment: Proclamation Honoring LaRue M. Evans. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of Proclamation Honoring LaRue M. Evans. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Proclamation. 

3



 

 

 
PROCLAMATION 

Honoring LaRue M. Evans 
 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans was born May 21, 1919 in Stokes, NC and was 101 years old; and 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans attended the Stokes schools and graduated valedictorian of her 
class in 1936; and 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans graduated from East Carolina Teachers College in 1940 with an 
A.B. Degree in English, French and history; and 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans married her husband, James Alex Evans, Jr., in 1943 of Winterville 
and has continued to be a resident; and 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans and her husband had one son Delyle M. Evans; and 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans graduated from East Carolina College in 1960 with a Master’s 
Degree; and 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans did post graduate study at the University of North Carolina in Chapel 
Hill in 1966; and 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans taught school from 1940-1981 including history at Winterville High 
School from 1942-1946; and 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans was active in promoting the growth and improvement of the Town 
of Winterville, chaired the town's Centennial Committee, served as secretary of the Winterville Chamber 
of Commerce, and led the fund raising drive for and directed the restoration of the A.W. Ange house 
for a museum and cultural center; and 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans established an endowment fund for the maintenance of the 
Winterville museum, served on the Board of Directors for the Winterville Historical and Arts Society and 
in 2011 she received citizen of the year award from the Winterville Chamber of Commerce, and 

WHEREAS, LaRue M. Evans continues to be a viable part of the Winterville Community, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville hereby honor the 
contribution and legacy of LaRue M. Evans to the Winterville Community; and 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be affixed this 
8th day of June, 2020. 

 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

4



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Presentations 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Neuse River Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 

Action Requested: Adopt the Resolution. 

Attachment: Draft Strategies in the Plan, Resolution of Adoption. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Neuse River Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan 

The attached Resolution of Adoption relates to the Neuse River Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. The 

Neuse River Plan involves Greene, Jones, Lenoir, Pitt and Wayne County, as well as all incorporated 

municipalities throughout the Region. The planning process was initiated early last year (2019), and will be 

completed following adoption by the Town Council followed by formal certification of the plan for the next five 

year cycle. 

Development of the draft document involved a series of four Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee 

meetings, as well as two public input meetings. Each jurisdiction was represented by Staff, as well as two 

Citizen Stakeholders. Attached are the draft strategies relating to the Town of Winterville (included in Pitt 

County) as well as the proposed Resolution of Adoption. A full copy of the draft plan, as well as materials 

associated with the planning process can be viewed through the following web link: 

www.neuseriverhmp.com . 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Adopt the Resolution. 

 

5

http://www.neuseriverhmp.com/


PITT COUNTY MITIGATION STRATEGIES 

Number Strategy Applicable Jurisdictions Hazards Addressed Goal Objective Category Lead/Participating Agencies Estimated Cost 
Potential Funding 

Sources 
Implementation 

Schedule 2019 Status Comments/Explanation 

P1 Review the County's Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
(adopted December 5, 2011) annually to ensure that 
the Future Land Use Map adequately delineates 
portions of the County deemed unsuitable for 
development due to existing environmental conditions. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail), 

Earthquake, Tornado 

1 1.3 P  Pitt County Planning Department 

 Pitt County Board of Commissioners 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund High In Progress – 
Carry Forward 

The Comprehensive Plan has been 
amended to address 
recommendations outlined in the 
Southwest Bypass LUP.  An NC 43 S 
corridor land use plan is scheduled 
for FY19/20 

P2 Continue to coordinate and collaborate with East 
Carolina University and Pitt Community College 
through the development of their respective hazard 
mitigation plans.  Through implementation of this 
update, Pitt County Planning will incorporate Vidant, 
GUC, and Duke Energy into the County’s Mitigation 
Planning efforts. 

Pitt County All Hazards 3 3.2 ES  Pitt County Administration 

 Municipal Administrations 

 East Carolina University 

 Pitt Community College 

Staff Time General Fund, 
NCDPS, UNC 

University System 

High In Progress – 
Carry Forward 

Planning staff works closely with 
ECU & PCC on annual mitigation 
planning efforts. 
 

P3 Continue to impose a two-foot freeboard requirement 
for all development located within a defined flood 
hazard area.   Through this plan update, Pitt County will 
consider amending its Flood Damage Prevention 
Ordinance to require two feet finished floor elevation 
above the lowest adjacent grade within the FEMA 
defined shaded X zone. 

Pitt County Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail) 

1 1.3 P  Pitt County Board of Commissioners 

 Pitt County Planning Board 

Staff Time General Fund High In Progress – 
Carry Forward 

Pitt County continues to impose a 
two-foot freeboard requirement 
for development in the SFHA. 

P4 Maintain all FEMA Elevation Certificates and FEMA 
Floodproofing Certificates for residential and non-
residential structures for all structures built or 
floodproofed since application to the CRS.  Non-CRS 
communities will also carry out this strategy in an 
effort to prepare for a potential application to the CRS 
Program. 

Pitt County, Farmville, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Winterville, 
Ayden, Bethel, Falkland, 
Fountain, Grimesland, 

Simpson 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail) 

2 2.2 P  Pitt County Planning Department 

 Municipal Administration 

Staff Time General Fund High In Progress – 
Carry Forward 

Pitt County keeps all elevation 
certificates submitted for SFHA 
development in Pitt County’s 
jurisdiction.   

P5 Consider the data and recommendations outlined 
within this plan when preparing updates to the 
County's Capital Improvements Plan.  All 
recommendations regarding capital expenditures will 
focus on siting all infrastructure and critical facilities 
outside of the Flood Hazard Area. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail) 

1 1.3 P  Pitt County Planning Department 

 Pitt County Board of Commissioners 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund, 
Grant Funds 

High In Progress – 
Carry Forward 

Pitt County will continue to seek 
funding for Special Medical Needs 
Shelter and may include this 
project in the County’s Capital 
Improvements Plan. 

P6 Continue to proactively seek out grant funding through 
NCEM and FEMA for mitigation of repetitive loss 
properties (RLP's) from future flooding events.  The 
County will maintain a list of RLP's and will apply for 
funding for all structures that meet cost-benefit 
thresholds as defined by FEMA.  Pitt County will assist 
all municipal jurisdictions in working through the 
structural mitigation grant funding process. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail) 

1 1.2 SP  Pitt County Board of Commissioners 

 Municipal Administrations 

To be Determined General Fund, 
NCPS, FEMA 

High In Progress – 
Carry Forward 

This effort was carried out 
following the effects of Hurricanes 
Irene, Matthew, and Florence. Five 
properties were acquired after 
Hurricane Irene through 2 HMGP 
grant cycles.  The County is in the 
process of acquiring units funded 
after Matthew, while applications 
for acquisition following Florence 
are still under review. 

P7 Coordinate with NCDEQ to enforce all NC State Erosion 
and Sedimentation and Erosion Control Regulations.  

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail) 

2 2.2 P  Pitt County Planning Department 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund, 
NCDEQ 

High In Progress – 
Carry Forward 

This is an ongoing activity. 

6



Number Strategy Applicable Jurisdictions Hazards Addressed Goal Objective Category Lead/Participating Agencies Estimated Cost 
Potential Funding 

Sources 
Implementation 

Schedule 2019 Status Comments/Explanation 

P8 Continue to expand upon the Alert Emergency 
Notification System available to all residents.  Pitt 
County Emergency Management will coordinate with 
all municipal jurisdictions regarding registration 
through the Pitt County Emergency Notification 
Registration Portal 
(https://pittcountync.onthealert.com).  The County will 
work with NCDPS to incorporate the “Know Your Zone” 
program into this process.  Efforts will be made to 
educate the public about the location and published 
resources defining evacuation zones and procedures. 

Pitt County Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail), 

Earthquake, Tornado 

4 4.2 PIO  Pitt County Emergency Management 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund, 
NCDPS 

High In Progress – 
Carry Forward 

Ongoing activity for Pitt County 
Emergency Management. 

P9 Pitt County Emergency Management, in conjunction 
with the County Planning Department, will evaluate 
and assess the availability and effectiveness of all 
critical facilities outlined within this plan.  Pitt County 
will coordinate with NCEM, Red Cross, local animal 
shelters, local care homes etc. in making 
determinations relating to need and capacity. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail), 

Earthquake, Tornado 

4 4.1 ES  Pitt County Emergency Management 

 American Red Cross 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund, 
American Red 

Cross 

High Not Started – 
Carry Forward 

The County is currently 
investigating the need and location 
for a Special Medical Needs 
Shelter.  Refer to updated strategy 
P12 and the top priority. 

P10 Pitt County Emergency Management, in conjunction 
with annual EOP updates, will determine if access to all 
critical facilities is readily available in the event of a 
flooding event.  Careful consideration should be given 
to localized flooding issues that may restrict access 
along limited access thoroughfares.  Where access 
issues are identified, Pitt County will establish a plan 
for alternative transportation. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail) 

3 3.2 ES  Pitt County Emergency Management 

 American Red Cross 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund, 
American Red 

Cross 

High Not Started – 
Carry Forward 

The County is currently 
investigating the need and location 
for a Special Medical Needs 
Shelter.   

P11 Continue to maintain the County's Continuity of 
Operations Plan (COOP).  This effort will include an 
annual update addressing risk management, service 
retention, alternative staffing procedures and recovery 
checklist for each County department. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

All Hazards 2 2.2 ES  Pitt County Emergency Management 

 Municipal Administration 

Staff Time General Fund, 
NCDPS 

High In Progress – 
Carry Forward 

The County COOP is reviewed 
annually by each department and 
updated by Pitt County Emergency 
Management. 

P12 Pitt County Emergency Management will review and 
update the County Emergency Operations Plan on an 
annual basis.  This update will involve coordination 
with all municipalities to ensure that all emergency 
contacts are accurate. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

All Hazards 2 2.2 ES  Pitt County Emergency Management 

 Municipal Administration 

Staff Time General Fund, 
NCDPS 

High In Progress – 
Carry Forward 

The County EOP is reviewed 
annually and utilized during the 
County’s annual tabletop exercise 
whereby EOP and COOP 
effectiveness are evaluated.  The 
results of this effort are outlined in 
a detailed after-action report. 

P13 Pitt County in coordination with all municipalities, will 
maintain the County's Special Medical Needs Registry 
(SMNR).  The SMNR is available to all County residents.  
Effective participation will require close cooperation 
between County EM and local government staff 
members.  All jurisdictions will work to advertise the 
availability of this service within their respective 
communities. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

All Hazards 4 4.2 PIO  Pitt County Social Services 

 Pitt County Emergency Management 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund, 
NCDPS 

High In Progress – 
Carry forward 

Pitt County Emergency 
Management maintains the list 
and it is utilized by Social Services. 

P14 Continue to maintain the County's Local Emergency 
Planning Committee (LEPC) focused on monitoring the 
presence and proliferation of hazard materials 
throughout the County.  The LEPC and County staff will 
continue to utilize E-Plan to monitor these materials.  
Pitt County will support efforts of the State of NC to 
develop an alternative to the Federal E-Plan system. 

Pitt County All Hazards 3 3.2 P  Pitt County LEPC Staff Time General Fund High In Progress – 
Carry forward 

The LEPC meets quarterly and 
monitors hazardous materials in 
Pitt County. 

7

file:///C:/Users/wjstanton/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/144EJQ49/(https:/pittcountync.onthealert.com


Number Strategy Applicable Jurisdictions Hazards Addressed Goal Objective Category Lead/Participating Agencies Estimated Cost 
Potential Funding 

Sources 
Implementation 

Schedule 2019 Status Comments/Explanation 

P15 Continue to maintain a library of materials focused on 
educating citizens, builders, realtors and developers 
about the dangers associated with floodplain 
development.  This information will also provide 
material outlining sound techniques for floodplain 
development and floodproofing of existing structures.  
The County will also maintain staff educated on these 
issues to work with prospective builders. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail) 

4 4.2 PIO  Pitt County Planning Department 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund, 
NCDPS 

High In Progress – 
Carry forward 

Pitt County continues to provide 
this information to interested 
parties and employs a certified 
floodplain manager to assist 
citizens with construction in the 
SFHA. 

P16 Continue to work closely with real estate agents to 
ensure that prospective buyers are educated about 
development within a flood hazard area.  The County 
will prepare materials for dissemination to local real 
estate agents to assist in this education process. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail) 

4 4.2 PIO  Pitt County Planning Department 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund, 
NCDPS 

High In Progress – 
Carry forward 

Pitt County regularly supplies 
floodplain certifications and other 
SFHA information to real estate 
agents. 

P17 Work closely with the Greenville Utilities Commission 
and the Neuse Regional Water & Sewer Authority to 
establish a memorandum of understanding regarding 
supplemental resource and capacity availability in the 
event of an emergency. 

Pitt County, Greenville Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail), 

Earthquake, Tornado 

3 3.2 ES  Pitt County Board of Commissioners 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund Medium Not Started - 
Carry Forward 

Greenville Utilities Commission 
and the Neuse Regional Water & 
Sewer Authority have the ability to 
share water resources. 

P18 Utilize recently upgraded storm surge inundation data 
provided through NCEM.  This data will be utilized 
when making changes to land use policy and regulatory 
documents.  This data will also be utilized as a 
component of the NCDPS “Know Your Zone” program. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail) 

4 4.2 PIO  Pitt County Emergency Management 

 Municipal Administrations 

Staff Time General Fund Medium New N/A 

P19 Work closely with the American Red Cross, NCDPS, and 
local care homes to identify a location for and 
ultimately establish a special medical needs shelter for 
County residents. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail), 

Earthquake, Tornado 

4 4.2 ES  Pitt County Board of Commissioners 

 Municipal Administrations 

$6 to $7 million 
dollars 

General Fund, 
NCDPS, FEMA 

Low New N/A 

P20 Work to proactively implement the recommendations 
of the Hurricane Matthew Resilient Redevelopment 
Plan developed in coordination with the NCDPS. 

Pitt County, Ayden, 
Bethel, Falkland, 

Farmville, Fountain, 
Greenville, Grifton, 

Grimesland, Simpson, 
Winterville 

Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail), 

Earthquake, Tornado 

1 1.3 SP  Pitt County Board of Commissioners 

 Municipal Administrations 

To be determined General Fund, 
NCDPS, FEMA, 

NCDEQ 

Low New N/A 

P21 The City of Greenville will strengthen the City’s existing 
stormwater control ordinances to require new 
residential development to provide 10-year flood 
ponds, instead of 1-year flood ponds.  The City will 
ensure that development complies with all stormwater 
regulations. 

Greenville Flood, Hurricane & 
Tropical Storm, Dam & 
Levee Failure, Severe 

Weather (Thunderstorm, 
Lightning, Hail) 

1 1.3 PP  Greenville City Council 

 Greenville Community Development 
Department 

Staff Time General Fund Low Not Started – 
Carry Forward 

Final determination has not been 
made regarding this standard; the 
City will continue to consider 
operations relating to local 
stormwater management policy 
during implementation of this 
plan. 

P22 The Town of Farmville will build a new 500,000 gallon 
above ground storage tank to enhance/increase the 
town’s storage capacity to 1.8 million gallons of water, 
which exceeds current average daily consumption. 

Farmville All Hazards 1 1.1 ES  Farmville Town Council 

 Farmville Staff 

To be determined General Fund; 
Grant Funding 

Low Not Started – 
Carry Forward 

The town will continue to research 
options regarding logistics and 
funding to carry out this capital 
improvement project. 

 

8



Resolution No. 20-R-061 

 
TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

 
RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 

NEUSE RIVER BASIN REGIONAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville is vulnerable to an array of natural hazards that can cause loss of 
life and damages to public and private property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville desires to seek ways to mitigate situations that may aggravate 
such circumstances; and 
 
WHEREAS, the development and implementation of a hazard mitigation plan can result in actions that 
reduce the long-term risk to life and property from natural hazards; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Winterville Town Council to protect its citizens and property from the 
effects of natural hazards by preparing and maintaining a local hazard mitigation plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is also the intent of the Winterville Town Council to fulfill its obligation under North 
Carolina General Statutes, Chapter 166A: North Carolina Emergency Management Act and Section 
322: Mitigation Planning of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act to 
remain eligible to receive state and federal assistance in the event of a declared disaster affecting the 
Town of Winterville; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville actively participated in the planning process for the Neuse River 
Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan and has prepared a regional hazard mitigation plan update with 
input from the appropriate local and state officials; and 
 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Division of Emergency Management and the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency will review the Neuse River Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan for legislative 
compliance and have approved the plan pending the completion of local adoption procedures; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Town Council of Winterville. North Carolina hereby: 
 

1. Adopts the Neuse River Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan; and 
 
 2. Vests the Planning Director with the responsibility, authority, and the means to: 
 

(a) Inform all concerned parties of this action. 
(b) Cooperate with Federal, State and local agencies and private firms which 

undertake to study, survey, map, and identify floodplain or flood-related 
erosion areas, and cooperate with neighboring communities with respect to 
management of adjoining floodplain and/or flood-related erosion areas in order 
to prevent aggravation of existing hazards. 

 
 3. Appoints the Planning Director to assure that, in cooperation with the other participating 

jurisdictions, the Hazard Mitigation Plan is reviewed annually and every five years as 
specified in the Plan to assure that the Plan is in compliance with all State and Federal 
regulations and that any needed revisions or amendments to the Plan are developed 
and presented to the Winterville Town Council for consideration. 

 
 4. Agrees to take such other official action as may be reasonably necessary to carry out 

the objectives of the 2020 Neuse River Basin Regional Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
 

9



Resolution No. 20-R-061 

 
 
 

Adopted this the 8th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

10



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Ange Plaza, Lot 21 – Annexation. 

Action Requested: Hold the Public Hearing for the Annexation. 

Attachment: Annexation Petition, Annexation Map, Legal Description, and Certification of Sufficiency. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The property owner of a portion of Parcel 76141 (Ange Plaza, Lot 21) is applying for annexation into the 

Town limits. 

 

Ange Plaza, Lot 21: 

Location: Beacon Drive east of its intersection with Winterville Parkway. 

Size: 1.2397 Acres. 

Zoned: GB. 

 

Annexation Process: 

1st Council Meeting: Direct Town Clerk to Investigate the Sufficiency of the Annexation (3/9/2020). 

2nd Council Meeting: Schedule a Public Hearing for the Annexation (5/11/2020). 

3rd Council Meeting: Hold Public Hearing on the Annexation (6/8/2020). 

 

 Adjacent property owners were mailed notification on 2/27/2020. 

 Notice was published in the Daily Reflector on 5/28/2020 and 6/4/2020. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing. 

 

11



12



(60'PUBLIC R/W - 40' BC/BC)

BEACON DRIVE

BEACO
N 

DRI
VE

(6
0'
PUBLI

C 
R/

W
 - 
36
' B

C/
BC)

(R
/W
 V

A
R
IE

S
 - P

A
V
E

M
E

N
T
 V

A
R
IE

S
)

(W
IN

T
E

R
V
IL

L
E
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y
)

N
C
 H

W
Y
 1
1
 &
 9
0
3

(COMMON AREA)

ANGE PLAZA

MB 62, P 162

27

21

1.2397 ACRES
MB 84, P 110

ANGE PLAZA

22

MB 66, P 145

ANGE PLAZA

23

MB 83, P 159

ANGE PLAZA

14

TO BE RECORDED

ANGE PLAZA

20

 

1
1
4
9
-

N
O

R
T

H
 

M
I
L
L

1708-FIRETOWER

1
1
4
8
-
P
I
T
T
 
T
E

C
H

1130-VERNON WHITE

N
C
 
1
1
 
(

M
E

M
O

R
I

A
L
 

B
L

V
D
)

BEACON DRIVE

N
C
 
1
1

R
A
I
L

R
O

A
D
 
E

X
T

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

EXISTING CITY LIMITS

M
B
 4
6
, 
P

G
 1
5
0

O
L

D
 C
IT

Y
 L
IM

IT
S

N
E

W
 C
IT

Y
 L
IM

IT
S

N 75°45'2
0" W

OLD CITY LIMITS

OLD CITY LIMITS

WCO

NORTH CAROLINAWINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP           PITT COUNTY

LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL

SURVEYED: APPROVED:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DATE:

SCALE:

CEP

CEP

CEP

MALPASS & ASSOCIATES

MAP NO. PLATS RECORDED BOOK PAGE

PROJECT NO.             , DRAWING NO.

PHONE:

 

ADDRESS:

 

OWNER:

(252) 756-1780

GREENVILLE, N.C. 27858

1645 E. ARLINGTON BLVD.,SUITE D

 

P-567

ANNEXATION MAP FOR

EXISTING CITY LIMIT =

OLD CITY LIMIT =

NEW CITY LIMIT =

  WINTERVILLE   TOWNSHIP, PITT COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

DATE:                    ; ORDINANCE NUMBER:                    ; AREA:                     ACRES

THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, N.C.

MAP SHOWING AREA ANNEXED BY

SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY BY ME

OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION, THAT THE RATIO

CARLTON E. PARKER               L-2980

   I, CARLTON E. PARKER, CERTIFY THAT

THIS MAP WAS DRAWN BY ME OR UNDER MY

OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED FROM

LATITUDES AND DEPARTURES 1S 1:10,000+;

THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE

SHOWN AS BROKEN LINES PLOTTED FROM

INFORMATION FOUND IN BOOK      , 

PAGE      ; THAT THIS PLAT WAS PREPARED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS 

AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE,

VICINITY MAP
1"= 1000'

SITE

P567ANEXLOT21.DGN

02/03/20

ANGE PLAZA -   LOT 21

1664.71' (
TIE)

1"= 60'

GRAPHIC SCALE

60' 60'030' 120'

1" = 60'

(252) 714-8653

BATH, NC 27808

3 REST HAVEN ROAD EXTENSION

CEDAR LANDING PROPERTIES, LLC

1.2397
THIS      DAY OF            A.D., 2020.

 OF THE PITT COUNTY REGISTRY

A PORTION OF THE PROPERTY IN DEED BOOK 3748 PAGE 300

ANNEX LOT 21

D
R

A
W
IN

G

P
R

O
G

R
E
S
S

13



Legal Description For 
Ange Plaza Lot 21 Annexation 

 
Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and 
being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at a point in the northern right of way of Beacon Drive said point being 
located S 75-45-20 E – 1664.71’ from the intersection of the northern right of way 
of Beacon Drive and the eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11and being the 
southeast corner of Ange Plaza Lot 22 as recorded in map book 84, page 110 of 
the Pitt County Registry, thence from said point of beginning N 31-04-43 E – 
300.00’, thence S 58-55-17 E – 180.00’, thence S 31-04-43 W – 300.00’ to the 
northern right of way of Beacon Drive, thence with the northern right of way of 
Beacon Drive N 58-55-17 W – 180.00’ to the point of beginning containing 
1.2397 acres. 

14



15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Winterville 

Annexation Ordinance 

 

Ordinance No: 20-O-061 

Property Annexed:  Cedar Landing Properties, LLC – Ange Plaza, Lot 21 

Ordinance Adopted: June 8, 2020 

Effective Date: June 30, 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mail to: 

 

Town of Winterville 

Attn: Planning Department 

2571 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC  28590 

16



Ordinance No. 20-O-061 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO EXTEND THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

Cedar Landing Properties, LLC – Ange Plaza, Lot 21 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has been petitioned under NCGS 160A-31 to annex the 

area described below; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has, by resolution, directed the Town Clerk to investigate 

the sufficiency of the petition; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition and a public 

hearing on the question of annexation was held at the Winterville Town Hall at 7:00 pm on June 

8, 2020 after due notice was given by publication on May 28, 2020 and June 4, 2020; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds that the petition meets the requirements of NCGS 

160A-31; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, 

North Carolina that: 

 

Section 1. By virtue of the authority granted by NCGS 160A-31, the following described 

territory is hereby annexed and made part of the Town of Winterville as of June 30, 2020: 

 

Cedar Landing Properties, LLC – Ange Plaza, Lot 21 

Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

Beginning at a point in the northern right of way of Beacon Drive said point being located S 75-
45-20 E – 1664.71’ from the intersection of the northern right of way of Beacon Drive and the 
eastern right of way of NC Hwy 11and being the southeast corner of Ange Plaza Lot 22 as 
recorded in map book 84, page 110 of the Pitt County Registry, thence from said point of 
beginning N 31-04-43 E – 300.00’, thence S 58-55-17 E – 180.00’, thence S 31-04-43 W – 
300.00’ to the northern right of way of Beacon Drive, thence with the northern right of way of 
Beacon Drive N 58-55-17 W – 180.00’ to the point of beginning containing 1.2397 acres. 
 

Section 2. Upon and after June 30, 2020, the above-described territory and its citizens 

and property shall be subject to all debts, laws, ordinances and regulations in force in the Town 

of Winterville and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town 

of Winterville. Said territory shall be subject to municipal taxes according to NCGS 160A-58.10. 

 

Section 3. The Mayor of the Town of Winterville shall cause to be recorded in the Office 

of the Register of Deeds of Pitt County, and in the Office of the Secretary of State in Raleigh, 

North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Section 1 above, 

17



together with a duly certified copy of this ordinance. Such map shall also be delivered to the 

County Board of Elections, as required by NCGS 163-288.1. 

 
 

Adopted this the 8th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
  

18



North Carolina 

 

Pitt County 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate copy of an ordinance duly adopted 

by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina, at a meeting held on June 8. 

2020 at 7 o’clock pm at the Town Hall in the Town of Winterville. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and have caused the official 

corporate seal of the Town of Winterville to be affixed, this ____ day of ______________, 2020. 

 

 

 

   
 Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 
 

 

North Carolina  

 

Pitt County 

 

I, Kristin L. Godley, a Notary Public, do hereby certify that Donald Harvey, Town Clerk, 

personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing 

certification, for the purpose therein expressed. 

WITNESS my hand and notarial seal this ____ day of ____________, 2020. 

 

 

 

   

 Notary Public 

 

 

 

My Commission Expires:   

 

19



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Evergreen Construction Company – Rezoning Request (Conditional Zoning District). 

Action Requested: Hold the Public Hearing for Rezoning Request. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Evergreen Construction Company. 

 

Location: Hwy 11/Chapman Street north of its intersection with Main Street. 

 

Parcel Number: 20628 / 28376. 

 

Site Data: 3.27 Acres. 

 

Current Zoning District: R-6 / GB 

 

Proposed Zoning District: Multifamily – Residential (MR) Conditional 

 

Conditional Zoning Request: “To allow for subject parcels to be developed as 48 unit (55+) age restricted 

senior rental housing.” 

 

 Notice published in the Daily Reflector on May 28, 2020 and June 4, 2020. 

 Notice mailed to adjacent property owners on May 27, 2020. 

 Notice posted on site February 10, 2020 and verified still there on May 27, 2020. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing. 

 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Evergreen Construction Company 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST R-6 and General Business (GB) to Multi-Family Residential (MR) –
Conditional District 

CONDITIONS "To allow for subject parcels to be developed as 48 unit (55+) age 
restricted senior rental housing." 

LOCATION 2576 Chapman Street 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 20628 and 28376 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on March 30, 2020.  Notification was posted on site on 
February 10, 2020.  14 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 3.27 Acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Partially Cleared / Partially Wooded 

 

 
 

 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Vacant 
 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N GB Church 

E GB / AR HWY 11 S, residential, vacant  

W R-6 / CB Residential, commercial, vacant 

S GB / R-6 Residential, commercial 
 

 

 

 

27



 

2 
Staff Report 

 

 
 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
R-6 and GB 

 
Multi-Family Residential 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

R-6 meant to mainly 
accommodate high-density 
residential.  GB intended to 
accommodate business that 
serve the traveling public and 
require large amounts of land 
for display and parking. 

MR is intended to provide a 
quiet, relatively high-density 
neighborhood consisting of 
apartment complexes. 

 

 
 

 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site plan submittal is required for any change of 
use in existing building 

**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 

 
 

 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 

28



 

3 
Staff Report 

 

 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS None available (per NCDOT Annual Average Daily 
Traffic Mapping)  

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Depending on site plan submittal, sidewalks may 
be required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 
 

 

UTILITIES (Availability) 

Water Available TOW 

Sewer Available TOW 

Electric Available TOW 
 

 
 

 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed Multi-Family Residential zoning district would allow land uses that are 

compatible with the general character of the area. 

 
 
 
 

29



 

4 
Staff Report 

 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this location as Mixed Use Center character 

area. The requested Multi-Family Residential zoning district is generally consistent 

with this character area as defined by the future land use designation. 

 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Land Use Policy 6 - Support Higher Density Housing Options in Strategic Locations:  

 Encourage housing options in locations within walking distance off commercial and 

mixed use areas. 

 

Economic Development Policy 5 - Promote Retirement-focused living: 

 Continue participation in the N.C. Department of Commerce's Certified 

Retirement program. 

 Remove barriers to and consider incentives for senior-friendly housing types in 
downtown and other appropriate locations 

 Recruit developers for individually owned patio homes and life care facilities to 

broaden market offerings to the retirement age demographic. 

 
Downtown Policy 1 - Live/work/play downtown:  

 Allow people to live near downtown Winterville, by encouraging and allowing more 

dense residential development within walking distance to downtown. 

 

Downtown Policy 3 - Encourage Investment and Redevelopment:  

 Encourage and allow high density residential in and around downtown. 

 

 

  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 

 

30



 

5 
Staff Report 

 
Staff Analysis 
 
The 3.27 acre property is currently vacant. North of the request is a church, zoned General 
Business (GB). East of the request NC Hwy 11 S. South of the request are single-family 
dwellings and commercial businesses, zoned R-6 and GB. West of the request are single-
family dwellings, vacant land, and commercial businesses, zoned Central Business, R-6, and 
General Business. The request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Comprehensive Land Use Plan, and is generally compatible with the existing 
development and trend in the surrounding area. 

 

Staff Recommendation 

 

Staff recommends approval of the requested Multi-Family Residential District with 

the condition of being specifically for an age restricted (55+) senior housing 

complex. 

. 

 

31



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 
 

 May 11, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes; 

 May 26, 2020 Budget Work Session Minutes; 

 May 27, 2020 Budget Work Session Minutes; and 

 June 1, 2020 Budget Public Hearing Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

32



 

Page 1 of 20 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, MAY 11, 2020 – 7:00 PM 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
ELECTRONIC VIA ZOOM 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM electronically via 
ZOOM with Mayor Pro Tem Veronica W. Roberson presiding. The following were present the entire length 
of the meeting: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor (absent due to illness) 

Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Robert Sutton, Electric Director 
Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 
Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Willie Gay, Code Enforcement Officer 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moye gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Smith to approve the agenda. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: Town Clerk Harvey read the following Proclamations. 
 

33



 

Page 2 of 20 

National Emergency Medical Services Week: 
 

 

34



 

Page 3 of 20 

National Public Works Week: 
 

 

35



 

Page 4 of 20 

National Police Week: 
 

 

36



 

Page 5 of 20 

Robert Lee Blount: 
 

 

37



 

Page 6 of 20 

PRESENTATIONS: Worthington Road Corridor Study. 
 
The purpose of this corridor study is to develop a corridor plan for Worthington Road, between Mill Street 
and Corey Road that establishes long-term capacity under a balanced land use plan. The corridor study 
evaluates current and future planned conditions, identify deficiencies and make recommendations to 
enhance connectivity and access for all modes of transportation and travel along the corridor, as well as 
create a vision for the corridor. Land and development patterns as well as strategies for a balanced 
transportation system have also been considered. Worthington Road will function as a gateway into the 
Town of Winterville and will connect future development with the downtown area, as well as providing 
connectivity for bicyclists and pedestrians. Maintaining a quality aesthetic context will also be important 
along the corridor. Planning Director Jones introduced Katie Curry, AICP, Project Manager and Justin 
Carroll, PE, Traffic Engineer with STV that gave the following presentation. 
 
 

 
 

38



 

Page 7 of 20 

 
 

 
 

39



 

Page 8 of 20 

 
 

 
 

40



 

Page 9 of 20 

 
 

 
 

41



 

Page 10 of 20 

 
 

 
 

42



 

Page 11 of 20 

 
 

 

 

43



 

Page 12 of 20 

 

 
 

 

44



 

Page 13 of 20 

 

 
 

 

45



 

Page 14 of 20 

 

 
 

 

46



 

Page 15 of 20 

 

 
 

 

47



 

Page 16 of 20 

 

 
 
Questions and discussion on the Plan took place. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
Worthington Road Corridor Study. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, 
yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, no. Motion carried, 4-1. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: No public comments where requested. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 

 April 13, 2020 Regular Meeting Minutes; and 
 April 27, 2020 Budget Progress Meeting Minutes. 

2. Ange Plaza Lot 21 Annexation – Reschedule Public Hearing. 
3. Evergreen Construction Rezoning Request – Reschedule Public Hearing. 
4. FEMA Assistance Resolution Designation of Applicants Agent (COVID-19). 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the consent 
agenda. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, 
yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
  

48



 

Page 17 of 20 

OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Nobel Canal Grant Application Update. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Williams gave an update on current funding application and associated timeline 
for streambank stabilization of Nobel Canal. Councilman Moye thanked staff for the report. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Highway 11 Force Main Bore Contract. 
 
The existing force main from the Church Street Lift Station under Highway 11 is an 8-inch PVC force 
main. The Town has experienced multiple failures of this line in the past few years, and the State has 
instructed the Town to begin replacing it to avoid future SSO’s. In order to accommodate future growth 
staff intends to replace the existing 8-inch force main with a new 12” force main. This is the next step in 
upsizing the entire force main, and staff hopes to accomplish this in small sections over a several year 
period to avoid a large upfront cost. Bids were opened on Tuesday, May 5, 2020. Four bids were 
received, with Borco being the lowest responsible bidder with a bid of $142,673.40. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Smith to approve the Highway 
11 Force Main Contract. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; 
Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
2018 Sidewalks Improvements Project Change Order #2. 
 
The Contractor for the 2018 Sidewalk Improvements Project completed the project in December 2019. 
The Contractor was delayed in completing the project due to the acquisition of an easement from the 
owner of the Dixie Queen Restaurant. Due to the delay being no fault of the Contractors the contract 
completion date shall be extended until after the project was completed. The change order also 
includes the cost of the additional work related to extra sidewalk on Ange Street and additional sidewalk 
repairs in Magnolia Ridge Subdivision. The Town Council had previously approved both of these items 
when the original contract was approved for $30,000. Other additional items included in the change 
order are additional handicap ramps (one at Dixie Queen and one at Mellon Downs), an additional 
culvert pipe at the ditch across from Mellon Downs, additional curb removal and replacement along Mill 
St., a curb head adjacent to Main & Mill, and some additional sidewalk repairs in the Copper Creek 
Subdivision. All of these items were necessary to complete the project and/or were requested by the 
Town. Staff recommends approving this change order for $35,190.43 for the additional work. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the 
2018 Sidewalks Improvements Project Change Order #2. The poll vote results are as follows: 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman 
Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Urgent Repair List. 
 
Staff submitted one (1) qualified applicant to Council for approval to send to Rebuilding Together for 
vetting and inclusion in the Town’s Urgent Repair Program for Spring 2020. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the Urgent 
Repair List. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman 
Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, no; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion 
carried, 4-1. 
 

49



 

Page 18 of 20 

Schedule Town Manager’s Performance Review 
 
It is time to set a Special Called Meeting Date to conduct the Town Manager’s Performance Review. 
Unless the Council deems it necessary to change the process, the Manager will author a Self-
Evaluation and forward it to Council, in addition to sending the Performance Review instrument (which 
is a Council-adopted instrument). Each Board member will complete the Performance Review form and 
forward to Keen Lassiter and he will work will Council during the meeting to conduct said Performance 
Review. Council set Tuesday, June 2, 2020 at 5:30 pm in the Executive Conference Room for the 
evaluation. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to schedule the Town 
Manager’s Performance Review for Tuesday, June 2, 2020 at 5:30 pm in the Executive 
Conference Room. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; 
Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman 
Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
Discussion on COVID-19 Re-opening (Councilman Smith). Thanks to business owners for this time and 
impact, we are looking at Governor to reopen the State. We have not had any hot spots, and businesses 
need to open. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Moore for the Town to send a 
Resolution to Governor Cooper to skip Phase 1 and go directly into Phase 2 of COVID-19 
Reopening. 
 
General questions and discussions relating to measures and timetables with positive and negative 
impacts. 
 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, no; Councilman Moye, no; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, no; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion failed 2-3. 
 
Discussion on restrictions of duplexes within certain areas of Town (Councilman Moore). Councilman 
Moore asked for duplex restrictions in certain areas of historic area near AG Cox. Town Manager 
Parker noted that Staff would look into the limitations. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Smith to restrict duplexes in 
certain areas of Town. 
 
General questions and discussions relating to duplex restrictions in certain areas of historic area near 
AG Cox and impacts. 
 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, no; Councilman Moye, no; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, no; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion failed 2-3. 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
Councilman Moore asked the status of the summer program. Town Manager Parker said we hoped to 
resume program as soon as feasibly possible. Parks and Recreation Director Johnston noted that staff 
is keeping eyes on guidelines and accordingly align plans. 
 
REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS: 
 

 Minimum Housing/Code Enforcement (TLP) 

50



 

Page 19 of 20 

 Tar Road Widening Project – Electric Engineering/Relocation (RS) 
 New Electric Territory Engineering/Installation (RS) 
 Fork Swamp Greenway Project (EJ) 
 Multi-Purpose Building Site Plan (EJ) 
 Winterville Market/Town Common Plan (BW) 
 Chapman Street Culvert - Nobel Canal Drainage Basin Study (TW) 
 2018 Sewer Rehab (TW) 
 Church Street Pump Station Rehabilitation (TW) 
 Cemetery (BW) 

 
Councilman Moore asked the plans of the building across from public safety. Town Manager Parker noted 
that it was scheduled in May for fire training, not burned to save the tree. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Williams reported on the Multi-Purpose building site. No longer working with 
one property, continue working with another, and looking at additional locations. 
 
Public Works Director Welborn noted that Chapman Street culvert is nearing completion and anticipate 
a change order. Road replacement is being investigated. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson noted an odor from 
the area. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 
None. 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: None 
 
Councilman Moore: None 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson: Noted the parade for Ms. Smith and thanked those that helped, also, thanks 
to Staff during COVID-19. 
 
Councilman Smith: Thanks to Staff for hard work. 
 
Councilman Moye: Urged citizens that we are all in this together. 
 
Councilman Hines: Mentioned the Cemetery dump, paving and road was in disrepair. Public Works 
Director Welborn noted that the County was working to get a contractor out there to make repairs. 
 
Manager Parker: None 
 
Mayor Jackson: None 
 
ADJOURN:  
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moye to adjourn the meeting. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; and Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. All Council Members were present the entire length of the meeting and the 
meeting it adjourned at 9:18 pm. 
 
 
 

51



 

Page 20 of 20 

Adopted this the 8th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

52



 

Page 1 of 6 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, MAY 26, 2020 - 6:00 PM 

BUDGET WORK SESSION MINUTES 
TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

ELECTRONIC VIA ZOOM 
 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Budget Work Session on the above date at 6:00 PM in the Town 
Hall Assembly Room and electronically via Zoom, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The 
following were present the entire length of the meeting: 
 

Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 
Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 
David Moore, Fire Chief 

Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Willie Gay, Code Enforcement Officer 

Amy P. Barrow, Executive Staff Assistant/Human Resource Assistant 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson gave the Invocation. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the agenda. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
DINNER: Short break for dinner. 
 
 

53



 

Page 2 of 6 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Recommended Budget: Town Manager Parker 
gave the following summary of the draft budget noting it is out of balance by $2,545,470. 

 

54



 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 
 

55



 

Page 4 of 6 

 

 
 

56



 

Page 5 of 6 

 

 
 
Town Manager Parker noted that the pandemic created revenue stream problems. She all items in the 
letter especially the highlighted unbalanced items. She noted that there is no tax adjustment or utility 
rate adjustments in the existing budget. 
 
There was additional discussion on status of non-town agency funding, Watermelon Festival allocation 
merit and cost of living increases for employees. 
 
Council and Staff conducted general discussions on the remainder of the items in the budget. 
Questions and answers clarified specific issues. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted that we have to make it work. There is a short time to work out the 
revenue shortfalls to expenditure needs until tomorrow night. We can talk about rate increases and 
there is much going on affecting the budget in different ways. 
 
Town Manager Parker discussed the scheduling of the meeting for her performance evaluation. Council 
agreed to reschedule until Monday, June 8 at 5:30 pm in Executive Conference Room with dinner 
served. 
 
Town Clerk Harvey noted that the ElectriCities Conference was cancelled for this year. 
 
RECESS: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to recess the 
meeting. Meeting will resume on Wednesday, May 27, 2020 at 6:00 pm. Meeting will be in the 
Town Hall Assembly Room (electronically remote via ZOOM). The poll vote results are as 
follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; 
Councilman Hines, yes; Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. All Council 
Members were present the entire length of the meeting and it recessed at 8:24 pm. 
 

57



 

Page 6 of 6 

 
Adopted this the 8th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

58



 

Page 1 of 3 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
WEDNESDAY, MAY 27, 2020 - 6:00 PM 
BUDGET WORK SESSION MINUTES 

TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 
ELECTRONIC VIA ZOOM 

 
The Winterville Town Council met in a Budget Work Session on the above date at 6:00 PM in the Town 
Hall Assembly Room and electronically via ZOOM, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The 
following were present the entire length of the meeting: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman 

Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 
Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 

Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 
David Moore, Fire Chief 

Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Willie Gay, Code Enforcement Officer 

Amy P. Barrow, Executive Staff Assistant/Human Resource Assistant 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Moore gave the Invocation. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve the agenda. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. 
 
DINNER: Short break for dinner. 
 

59



 

Page 2 of 3 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Recommended Budget: Town Manager Parker 
gave an update on the revenue and budget sheets and reported it looked better. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted the sheets out of balance last night are currently balanced. Staff and 
Council discussed the items addressed to adjusting the budget. 
 
Town Manager Parker said sewer is the big topic with the challenge of large and continued projects. 
Assistant Town Manager Williams noted the impact of projects on rates and the necessary 
improvements to create growth areas. Our rates are low compared to other systems and funding 
agencies said we need rate increases to pay for the debt service. We have missed projects due to rate 
structure. We asking council for a $3.50 monthly rate increase in the flat sewer rate. Discussion 
continued on opportunities and obstacles with sewer service. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to approve a $3.50 
monthly flat rate increase on sewer service. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson noted that at workshops funding agencies indicate that localities need to have 
adequate rates. Poor sewer can be health hazards. Councilman Moore said many citizens are 
unemployed and not getting money and most do not have a guaranteed income. Mayor Pro Tem 
Roberson said I have it, but I do not want sewer in my house, sewer rates are lower than the surrounding 
towns. Mayor Jackson noted that a $3.50 month increase would equal $42 year. 
 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, no; 
Councilman Smith, no; Councilman Hines, yes; Councilman Moore, no. Motion failed 2-3. 
 
DIRECTION FROM COUNCIL/DISCUSSION; 
 
Town Manager Parker asked for direction. Councilman Moye asked that she look for funds. 
 
Assistant Town Manager Williams said we would have to turn back funds received. Town Manager Parker 
noted the Public Hearing is scheduled for Monday. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson said loosing projects would 
cost. Town Manager Parker noted that Staff and Council has committed a substantial amount of time and 
effort already to the projects. Assistant Town Manager Williams said Council passed a Resolution 
accepting the offer. Councilman Moore said $135,000 spent on the project; however, we have an 
unemployment problem. Mayor Pro Tem Roberson said she appreciated the efforts for the applications. 
Town Manager Parker noted that everyone has worked hard during the pandemic. Mayor Pro Tem 
Roberson said it bothers me not to get started on this project. Councilman Moore noted we have bumps 
in the road. Assistant Town Manager Williams said this project would fix that area, help flow to CMSD, 
helps our costs, and ability to bring on new homes not limit new homes in the Town. Councilman Hines 
thanked staff for showing the problems, said it helps show determination, and the federal side of the 
funding cycle is important. Councilman Moye said he never said he was against the project; it is just a 
bad time for increase. 
 
Town Manager Parker said she would need half a day to review the budget for ways to balance. 
Councilman Moye asked that she check, and see if there is a way without any increases. Town Manager 
Parker noted she would review and report to Council. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson for the Town 
Manager to look at ways to make the budget cuts and forward those to Council for review. The 
poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, no; Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 4-1. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 

60



 

Page 3 of 3 

Motion made by Councilman Moye and seconded by Councilman Hines to adjourn the meeting. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; 
Councilman Smith, yes; Councilman Hines, yes; Councilman Moore, yes. Motion carried 
unanimously, 5-0. All Council Members were present the entire length of the meeting and it 
adjourned at 8:29 pm. 
 
 

Adopted this the 8th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

61



 

Page 1 of 2 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
MONDAY, JUNE 1, 2020 – 7:00 PM 

BUDGET PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES 
WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

(ELECTRONIC MEETING VIA ZOOM) 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room and electronically via ZOOM, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following 
were present the entire length of the meeting: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Veronica W. Roberson Mayor Pro Tem 
Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Councilman 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman (absent) 
Johnny Moye, Councilman (absent) 

Mark C. Smith, Councilman 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Tony Klontz, Fire Retention, Recruitment and Member Officer 

Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Smith gave the Invocation. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Smith to approve the agenda. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; 
Councilman Hines, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 3-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Recommended Budget. 
 

62



 

Page 2 of 2 

Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open and asked if there were any comments. 
 
Town Manager Parker said that no comments had been received. She noted that comments would be 
accepted for 24 hours from the end of the meeting. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none, Mayor Jackson 
declared the public hearing closed. 
 
(Notation to the minutes: no comments were received during the 24-hour period following the 
meeting.) 
 
Town Manager Parker said a $3.50 sewer rate increase would result in additional revenue of $13,692 a 
month or $164,304 for the year. 
 
Town Manager Parker noted that budget adoption is scheduled for next week on Monday, June 8, 2020. 
 
Attorney Lassiter said motions could be made tonight. 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines to approve a $3.50 monthly flat rate increase on sewer service. 
Motion died for lack of a second. 
 
Pro Tem Roberson noted she preferred not to vote until the entire Council was present. 
 
Pro Tem Roberson said the Library needs entire amount requested, an additional $1,400. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Roberson to increase the Library amount in the budget to their 
request. Motion died for lack of a second. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Hines and seconded by Councilman Smith to adjourn the meeting. 
The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Roberson, yes; Councilman Smith, yes; 
Councilman Hines, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 3-0. 
 
 
 Adopted this the 8th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 Veronica W. Roberson, Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

63



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Merizio Property – Rezoning Request (3018 Church Street Ext – parcel 68782). 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing for August 10, 2020. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Patricia Merizio. 

 

Location: Church Street Ext south of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Road. 

 

Parcel Number: 68782. 

 

Site Data: 1.36 Acres. 

 

Current Zoning District: AR. 

 

Proposed Zoning District: General Business (GB). 

 

 Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of the request at the May 18, 2020 

meeting. 

 Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on March 4, 2020 

and May 6, 2020. 

 Notification was posted on the site on March 4, 2020. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule the Public Hearing. 

 

64



65



66



67



REZONING LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

FOR 
 

PATRICIA MERIZIO 
 
 

 
 Beginning at a point located in the centerline intersection of SR 1718 – Park Road 
and SR 1714 – Church Street Extension thence N 14-12-29 E, 1,215.50 feet to an existing 
magnetic nail located in the centerline of SR 1714 – Church Street Extension; thence 
leaving the centerline of SR 1714 – Church Street Extension N 76-21-06 W, 30.21 feet to 
an existing iron pipe located on the western right of way of SR 1714 – Church Street 
Extension the POINT OF BEGINNING; thence from said point of beginning and leaving 
the western right of way of SR 1714 – Church Street Extension N 76-20-57 W, 241.20 
feet to an existing iron pipe; thence N 13-39-03 E, 325.16 feet to an iron pipe set; thence 
continuing N 13-39-03 E, 14.99 feet to a point located in a +-25 foot ditch; thence running 
along a +-25 foot ditch S 36-35-43 E, 345.34 feet to an existing re-bar located on the 
western right of way of SR 1714 – Church Street Extension; thence running along the 
western right of way of SR 1714 – Church Street Extension the following courses and 
distances S 26-41-26 W, 65.84 feet to a point; thence S 23-36-49 W, 51.58 feet to the 
point of beginning containing 1.364 acres. 

68



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Patricia Merizio 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST Agricultural Residential (AR) to General Business 

CONDITIONS n/a 

LOCATION 3018 Church Street Ext 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 68782 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on March 4, 2020.  Notification was posted on site on 
March 4, 2020.  10 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 1.36 Acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared / Existing building on site 
 

 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Vacant 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N GB Commercial (HVAC Business) 

E R-12.5 / AR Residential / Vacant 

W AR Vacant  

S AR Vacant 
 

 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
Agricultural Residential (AR) 

 
General Business (GB) 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Large residential lots to 
accommodate septic systems 
 

Accommodate businesses that 
serve the traveling public 

69



 

2 
Staff Report 

 
 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS Stream feature located on northern property line 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site plan submittal is required for any change of 
use in existing building 

**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS None available (per NCDOT Annual Average Daily 
Traffic Mapping)  

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Depending on site plan submittal, sidewalks may 
be required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 
 

 
 

 

 

70



 

3 
Staff Report 

 

 
 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed General Business zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible 
with the general character of the area. 
 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this location as a Suburban Residential character 

area. However, given that there is an existing non-residential structure on the property 

and the property is adjacent to existing General Business, staff recommends amending 

the Future Land Use Plan and designate the subject property as Office and 

Employment.  The requested General Business zoning district is generally consistent 

with this character area as defined by the future land use designation. 

 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Land Use Policy 1 – Encourage a balanced tax base while managing 
growth:   

 (1.2) Encourage non-residential growth in the form of retail, restaurants, professional 

offices and industrial development. 

 

Economic Development Policy 2 – Improve self-sufficiency and reduce 
retail leakage: 

 (2.1) Support Winterville’s transformation from a “bedroom community” to a 

“neighboring community” of Greenville. 

 
Economic Development Policy 6 – Focus on business recruitment, 
expansion and retention: 

• (6.2) Encourage and support local businesses, especially in expansion efforts. 

 

  

 

 

 

71



 

4 
Staff Report 

 

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 

 

Staff Analysis 
The 1.364 acre property has an existing commercial building on it.  The property North of the 
request currently vacant, but is zoned General Business (GB) and has been permitted for a 
commercial business (Anderson HVAC). East of the request (across Church Street Ext) is 
zoned R-12.5 and AR.  Holly Grove subdivision is located diagonally across the street and the 
property south of the subdivision is vacant.  South of the request is vacant and AR. West of 
the request is vacant and zoned AR. The request is consistent with the intent and purpose of 
the Zoning Ordinance, the  Comprehensive Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with 
the existing development and trend in the surrounding area. 

 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested General Business District and 

amending the Future Land Use Plan to designate this property as Office and 

Employment. 

 

72



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Pitt County Shrine Club – Rezoning Request (3100 Church Street Ext – Parcel 73685). 

Action Requested: Schedule Public Hearing for August 10, 2020. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Pitt County Shrine Club 

 

Location: Church Street Ext south of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Road 

 

Parcel Number: 73685 

 

Site Data: 2.99 Acres 

 

Current Zoning District: AR 

 

Proposed Zoning District: Office and Institutional – Conditional District 

 

The following conditions would apply: to operate a fraternal organization (Pitt County Shrine Club); to use 

the facility for fraternal meetings and fundraising efforts to support Shriners Hospital for Children; to allow the 

facility to be rented to the public for wedding receptions on Saturdays/Sundays and business meetings and 

luncheons during the week; public rental events on Saturday would not begin before 8 am and would 

conclude by 11 pm. 

 Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval at the May 18, 2020 meeting. 

 Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on May 8, 2020. 

 Notification was posted on the site on May 8, 2020 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule the Public Hearing. 

 

73



OWNERSHIP INFORMATION: 

REZONING APPLICATION 

TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

2 5 71 Railroad Steel 

PO Box 1459 
Winterville, NC 28590 

Phone: (252) 756-2221 

Pitt County Shrine Club Holding Corporation 
Applicant: 

Address: 
3100 Church Street Winterville, NC 28590 

Phone#: 
252-714-1062

Owner: 
Pitt County Shrine Club Holding Corporation 

3100 Church Street Winterville, NC 28590 
Address: 

Phone#: 
252-714-1062

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

73685 
Parcel#: 

2.990 
Area (square feet or acres): 

Current Land Use: 
Society Building 

Staff Use Only 
Appl.# _____ _ 

-----------------------------------

. 
f 

NCSR 1714 (Church Street Extension) 
Location o Property: 

ZONING REQUEST 

. . . AR 
Ex1stmg Zonmg: --------------

                    01 - Conditional District 
Requested Zoning: ____________ 

_ 

Reason for zoning change: 
To allow for renting facility. 

This application shall be accompanied by the following items: 

- A map drawn to a scale of not less than 400 feet to the inch and not more than 20 feet to the inch showing the land covered by the proposed
amendment;

- A legal description of the property;
- A list of the names and addresses of all owners of property involved in the map change and all adjoining property owners as shown on County tax

records;
- A filing fee according to a regularly adopted Fee Schedule of the Town.

See attached adendum for proposed conditions.

74



75



76



77



78



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Pitt County Shrine Club 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST Agricultural Residential (AR) to Office and Institutional Conditional 
District (OI-CD) 

CONDITIONS n/a 

LOCATION 3100 Church Street Ext 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 73685 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on May 8, 2020.  Notification was posted on site on May 8, 
2020.  7 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 2.99 Acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared / Existing building on site 
 

 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Fraternal Organization – CUP issued on 12/19/17 
 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N AR Residential 

E AR Vacant 

W AR Residential / Vacant  

S AR Vacant 
 

 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS   

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
Agricultural Residential (AR) 

 
Office and Institutional - CD 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Large residential lots to 
accommodate septic systems 

General business and 
professional offices. 

79



 

2 
Staff Report 

 
 

 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A 

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Site plan approved by DRC 7/26/18 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

  

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS None available (per NCDOT Annual Average Daily 
Traffic Mapping)  

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS N/A 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 
 

 

 

 

80



 

3 
Staff Report 

 
 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed General Business zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible 
with the general character of the area. 
 
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this location as a Suburban Residential character 

area. Per the Comprehensive Land Use Plan, civic organizations are potentially allowed 

within future land use category.  The property and existing building are already approved 

for the operation of the Pitt County Shrine Club.  Therefore, the requested Office and 

Institutional – Conditional District is generally consistent with this  character area as 

defined by the future land use designation. 

 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Land Use Policy 5 – Maintain and improve neighborhood character. 

 (5.1) Identify places that make Winterville unique. 

 

  

 

 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 

 

Staff Analysis 
The 2.99 acre property has an existing building on it that has already been approved for the 
Pitt County Shrine Club.  The property North of the request currently vacant and is zoned 
Agricultural-Residential (AR). East of the request (across Church Street Ext) is zoned AR and 
has a single family home located on it.    South of the request is vacant and AR. West of the 
request is vacant and zoned AR. The request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the 
Zoning Ordinance, the  Comprehensive Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the 

81



 

4 
Staff Report 

existing development and trend in the surrounding area. 

 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the requested Office and Institutional – Conditional 

District. 

 

82



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2019-2020-7. 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment 19-20-7. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 5/29/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the seventh budget amendment for the 2019-2020 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses several items. 

The first item reduces sales tax due to economic slowdown as a result of COVID 19. The anticipated shortfall 

is $154,423 

The second item address FEMA reimbursements for both Hurricane Dorian and Florence.  We received 

$59,286 to date. 

The third item addresses reduced debt proceeds in the amount of $300,000 for the software purchase that is 

being pushed out to next FY. 

The fourth item addresses the reduction in recreation programing as a result of COVID 19. The anticipated 

shortfall is $69,630. 

The fifth item addresses the Chapman Street Nobel Canal funding received from FEMA for bank stabilization 

in the amount of $20,744. 

The sixth item addresses the close out of three capital project funds. This transfers the remaining cash back 

to the parent fund. The total transfer is $231,202 

The seventh item addresses the reduced electric sales as a result of rate changes for COVI 19 response. 

The lost revenue is estimated to be $258,000 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment will have net reductions of $607,630. 

Recommendation: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

 

83



BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment 

be made to the annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020:

 

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Account Fund Increase Decrease

Fund Balance Contribution 10 3831 General Fund 132,737$           

Fund Balance Contribution 10 3831 General Fund 35,920.00$        

Grant Revenue 10 3420 General Fund 35,920$             

Asset Forfeiture Funds 10 3435 General Fund 15,330$             

Sales Tax Revenue 10 3210 General Fund 154,423.00$     

FEMA Reimbursements 10 3425 General Fund 59,286$             

EMS Reimbursements 10 3861 General Fund 25,000$             

Debt Service Proceeds 10 3811 General Fund 300,000.00$     

Subdivision Recreation Fee 15 3627 Recreation Fund 24,345$             

Adult Softball 15 3615 Recreation Fund 7,630.00$          

Rec Programs 15 3620 Recreation Fund 11,000.00$        

Concessions 15 3624 Recreation Fund 30,000.00$        

Donations and Sponsorship 15 3622 Recreation Fund 1,000.00$          

Fund Raising 15 3628 Recreation Fund 9,000.00$          

Tournament Revenue 15 3632 Recreation Fund 11,000.00$        

Contribution from General Fund 41 3884 Chapman St 20,744$             

Contribution from Fund Balance 43 3940 Water CIP 136,313$           

Contribution from Fund Balance 48 3940 Water Elevated Tank CIP 52,009$             

Contribution from Fund Balance 49 3940 Sewer Church St Mit, CIP 42,880$             

Connection Fee 60 3902 Electric 17,875$             

Electric Sales 60 3901 Electric 258,000.00$     

Connection Fee 61 3922 Water 12,475$             

Contribution from CIP 61 3946 Water Fund 136,313$           

Contribution from CIP 61 3946 Water Fund 52,009$             

Sewer System Imp Fee 62 3934 Sewer Fund 11,902$             

Contribution from CIP 62 3946 Sewer Fund 42,880$             

Total 818,018$           817,973$           

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Account Department Fund Increase Decrease

Subdivision LOC 1041950000 5121 Non - Departmental General Fund 21,856$             

Asset Forfeiture Appropriation 1043431000 4263 Police General Fund 15,330$             

Contribution to CIP 1041950000 9107 Non - Departmental General Fund 20,744$             

Capital Outlay 1041412001 7150 Finance General Fund 280,000.00$     

Construction 4180801000 7109 Chapman St Culvert 20,744$             

Contribution to Capital Reserve 1560601000 9112 Recreation 24,345$             

Cal Ripken All-stars 1560601000 4275 Recreation 15,400.00$        

New Equipment 1560601000 4274 Recreation 4,000.00$          

Departmental Improvement 1560601000 4260 Recreation 14,000.00$        

Football 1560601000 4280 Recreation 4,000.00$          

Rec Programs 1560601000 4282 Recreation 11,230.00$        

Senior Programs 1560601000 4284 Recreation 1,000.00$          

Fall Ball 1560601000 4298 Recreation 3,000.00$          

Babe Ruth Baseball 1560601000 4287 Recreation 5,000.00$          

Concessions 1560601000 4283 Recreation 12,000.00$        

Contribution to Water Fund 4380801000 9117 Water CIP 136,313$           

Contribution to Water Fund 4880801000 9117 Water Elevated Tank CIP 52,009$             

Contribution to Sewer Fund 4980801000 9104 Sewer Church St Mit, CIP 42,880$             

Contribution to Capital Reserve 6071711000 9112 Electric 17,875$             

Capital Outlay 6071711000 7150 Electric 258,000.00$     

Contribution to Capital Reserve 6172721000 9112 Water Fund 12,475$             

Contingency 6172721000 4250 Water Fund 188,322$           

Contribution to Capital Reserve 6273732021 9112 Sewer Fund 11,902$             

Contingency 6273732021 4250 Sewer Fund 42,880$             

Total 607,675$           607,630$           

Adopted the 8th day of June 2020.

Mayor

Town Clerk 

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 19-20-7

84



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: 2020-2021 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance. 

Action Requested: Adoption of Ordinance. 

Attachment: Draft FY 2020-2021 Budget Ordinance. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 6/2/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Attached please find the Draft Budget Ordinance for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year. The Budget Ordinance 
reflects totals for the Draft Balanced Budget as presented and discussed at the Budget Public Hearing held 
on Monday, June 1, 2020. 

Budgetary Impact: As presented. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council adoption of the Ordinance and thus of the FY 2020-2021 
Draft Budget. 

85



 

 

 

86



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
BUDGET ORDINANCE 

FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina: 
 
SECTION 1:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the General 
Fund for the Fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 
Ad Valorem Taxes  4,164,406.00 
Other Taxes and Licenses 

 
2,410,439.00 

Permits and Fees 
 

12,250.00 
Sanitation Fees 

 
557,052.00 

Investment Income 
 

82,264.00 
Inspections 

 
177,247.00 

Miscellaneous Income 
 

210,359.00 
Grant Revenue 

 
210,682.00  

Inter-Fund Transfer Services 
 

1,153,139.00 
Electric Fund Contribution 

 
650,000.00 

EMS Contribution  127,961.00 
Fund Balance Appropriation  130,021.00 
Debt Proceeds  1,163,673.00 

  
$11,049,493.00 

 
 
SECTION 2:  The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the General Fund for 
the operation of the Town government and its activities for the Fiscal Year beginning 
July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
Governing Board  105,823.00 
Administration  645,974.00 
Finance  1,300,386.00 
Inspections  299,701.00 
Human Resources  139,808.00 
Information Technology  436,772.00 
Planning Department  148,154.00 
Public Buildings  788,504.00 
Grounds and Maintenance  32,000.00 
Police Department  2,212,028.00 
Fire Department  906,388.00 
EMS Department  126,334.00 
Animal Control  13,100.00 
Mosquito Control  8,600.00 
Public Works  1,306,553.00 
Sanitation  553,000.00 
Non-Departmental  2,026,368.00 

  $11,049,493.00 
 

87



2 

 
SECTION 3:  The following revenues will be available in the Recreation Fund for the 
Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Program Fees $124,530 
 Concession Income $37,500 
 General Fund Transfer $930,711 
  $1,092,741 
 
SECTION 4:  The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Recreation Fund for 
operation of the Winterville Recreation Programs during the Fiscal Year beginning July 
1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Recreation Department $1,092,741 
  $1,092,741 
 
SECTION 5:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Powell 
Bill Fund for the Fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Grant Funding $251,494 
 Interest Income $2,452 
  $253,946 
  
SECTION 6:  The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Powell Bill Fund for the 
operation of the Powell Bill Program for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020 and 
ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Powell Bill $253,946 
  $253,946 
 
SECTION 7:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Home 
Housing Program Fund for the Fiscal year July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 General Fund Contribution $20,000 
  $20,000 
 
SECTION 8:  The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Home Housing 
Program Fund for the operation of the Urgent Repair and Housing Program for the Fiscal 
Year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Contracted Service $20,000 
  $20,000 
 
 
SECTION 9:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Fire 
Grant Fund for the Fiscal year July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Grant Funding $630,610 
 General Fund Contribution $417,005 
  $1,047,615 
 

88



3 

 
SECTION 10:  It is estimated that the following appropriations will be available in the 
Fire Grant Fund for the Fiscal year July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Fire Grant Fund $1,047,615 
  $1,047,615 
 
SECTION 11:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Electric 
Enterprise Fund for the Fiscal year July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Sales and Service $7,115,800 
 Retained Earnings $361,227 
  $7,477,027 
 
SECTION 12:  The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Electric Enterprise 
Fund for the operation of the electric utility for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020 and 
ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Electric Department $7,477,027 
  $7,477,027 
 
SECTION 13:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Water 
Enterprise Fund for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Sales and Service $1,570,198 
  $1,570,198 
 
SECTION 14:  The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Water Enterprise 
Fund for the operation of the water utility for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020 and 
ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Water Department $1,570,198 
  $1,570,198 
 
SECTION 15: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Sewer 
Enterprise Fund for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Sales and Service $2,512,834 
  $2,512,834 
 
SECTION 16:  The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Sewer Enterprise 
Fund for the operation of the sewer utility for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020 and 
ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Sewer Department $2,512,834 
  $2,512,834 
 
SECTION 17:  It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the 
Stormwater Fund for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Sales and Service $507,090 
  $507,090 
 

89



4 

 
SECTION 18:  The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Stormwater Fund for 
the operation of the Storm Water utility for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020 and 
ending June 30, 2021: 
 
 Storm Water Department $507,090 
  $507,090 
 
SECTION 19:  There is hereby levied a tax at the rate of forty-seven and one-half cents 
($.475) per one hundred dollars ($100) valuation of property as listed for taxes as of 
January 1, 2020 for the purpose of raising the revenue listed as “Ad Valorem Taxes” in 
the General Fund in Section 1 of this ordinance.  This rate is based on a total estimated 
valuation of property for the purposes of taxation of $724,258,681 and an estimated rate 
of collection of 97% for real and personal property; 100% for vehicles. 
 
SECTION 20:  The Town Manager (Budget Officer) is hereby authorized to transfer 
appropriations as contained herein under the following conditions: 
 

a. May amend line item appropriations within any Fund as long as the total 
appropriation of that Fund is not changed.  A record of any such 
amendments shall be maintained by the Finance Director for public 
inspection. 

b. May not transfer any amounts between funds, unless approved by the 
Governing Board through an amendment to the Budget Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 21:  The attached Fee and Utility Rate Schedules are hereby adopted for the 
Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 
 
SECTION 22:  The attached Pay and Classification Plan is hereby adopted for the Fiscal 
Year beginning July 1, 2020 and ending June 30, 2021. 
 
SECTION 23:  Copies of the Budget Ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Clerk to 
the Governing Board and to the Town Manager (Budget Officer) to be kept on file by 
them for their direction in the disbursement of funds. 
 

Adopted this 8th day of June, 2020. 
 
 
 
  ___________________________________ 
  Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

90



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: The Police Department is requesting our continued participation and contract with Pitt County 
Schools for the Town of Winterville to supply one (1) School Resource Officer at A.G. Cox (primarily) and 
secondary duties at W.H. Robinson and Creekside Elementary Schools. 

Action Requested: Enter into the SRO contract with Pitt County Schools. 

Attachment: Contract. 

Prepared By: Ryan C. Willhite, Chief of Police Date: 6/3/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/3/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Pitt County Schools has requested that the Town of Winterville enter into a contract to supply a School 

Resource Officer (SRO) in the County schools in our jurisdiction. The County has proposed a one-year 

contract which will pay the Officers salary and benefits ($64,340.54) and the Town of Winterville is 

responsible for the equipment, uniforms, vehicle and training. This Officer will primarily be assigned to A.G. 

Cox Middle School, but will frequent W.H. Robinson Elementary as well as Creekside Elementary as needed 

or prudent. The County will make 12 -monthly installments to the Town to reimburse the salary and benefits 

cost. As with other SRO’s throughout the County, this contract is renewed annually to address changes in 

salary or details 

Budgetary Impact: The Department’s current budget will absorb personal equipment, uniforms and training 
costs. 

Recommendation: Approval of Contract. 

 

91



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  1 

 

NORTH CAROLINA 

 

PITT COUNTY 

WINTERVILLE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

2020–2021 

 

 This Winterville Police Department School Resource Officer Program Agreement for the 

2020–2021 School Year (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this the 1st day of June, 2020, by and 

between The Pitt County Board of Education, a body politic and corporate, organized and existing 

under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “School System”) and the Town of Winterville, a 

municipal corporation in the State of North Carolina (the “Town”) (individually “Party” and 

collectively the “Parties”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town has established, organized, and maintained an accredited law 

enforcement agency, the Winterville Police Department (“WPD”), with territorial jurisdiction and all 

law enforcement powers as authorized by statute, case law, and the common law of the State of North 

Carolina within the corporate limits of the Town, pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 160A-281 and N.C.G.S.               

§ 160A-285; 

 

 WHEREAS, the School System currently serves more than 23,000 students in 37 schools in 

Pitt County; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have a close working relationship and desire to create a safe and 

secure environment on the campuses of the School System which are located within the corporate 

limits of the Town; 

 

 WHEREAS, this Agreement establishes the Parties’ duties and obligations concerning the 

Town’s involvement in the School System’s School Resource Officer (“SRO”) Program (the “SRO 

Program”) utilizing WPD officers in and upon the School System’s schools, which are located within 

the corporate limits of the Town and are part of this Agreement; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties recognize the benefits of the Town’s participation in the SRO 

Program; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town agrees to provide to the School System and manage one (1) full-time 

SRO and provide supplies and equipment necessary to support the SRO, and the School System agrees 

to reimburse the Town for its expenses in providing the said SRO for the SRO Program, as set forth 

herein; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to set forth in this Agreement the specific terms and conditions 

of the services to be performed and provided by the Parties pursuant to the SRO Program. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants and 

agreements contained herein below, and for other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1.0 Goals and Objectives.  The Parties share the following goals and objectives regarding the 

SRO Program. 

 

92



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  2 

 

1.1 To provide a safe, inclusive, and positive learning environment for students, educators, 

principals and assistant principals (individually “school administrator” and collectively 

“school administrators” unless otherwise stated), volunteers, and other members of the 

school community; and 

 

1.2 To foster an efficient and cohesive SRO program that will build positive relationships 

between law enforcement officers and school administrators, parents, and students. 

 

2.0 SRO Program Manual.  To effectuate the goals and objectives of the SRO Program, the 

Parties have developed and agree to be bound by the terms set forth in an SRO Program Manual 

which establishes standards governing SRO conduct and the relationship between the SROs 

and school administrators.  The SRO Manual is attached hereto as Attachment A and is hereby 

incorporated into this Agreement.   

 

2.1 No later than October 31, 2020, school administrators at schools where SROs are 

assigned and SROs must read the SRO Manual and execute an Acknowledgement.  The 

Acknowledgement is attached hereto as Attachment B and is hereby incorporated into 

this Agreement.    

 

2.2 The Parties agree that their employees will adhere to the conditions set forth in the SRO 

Manual.   

 

2.3 Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to bar additional training to foster 

collaboration between school administrators and SROs or for any other purpose 

deemed necessary by the Parties. 

 

3.0 The Town’s Obligations. 

 

3.1 The Town agrees to employ one (1) SRO during the term of this Agreement for primary 

placement at A.G. Cox Middle School with supporting duties at W.H. Robinson and 

Creekside Elementary Schools.  The SRO assigned by the Town may be assigned to and 

used among any and all public schools within the jurisdiction of WPD.  The assignments 

can be changed upon agreement by the Parties. 

 

3.1.1 In the event that the SRO serving under this Agreement shall cease to serve as 

an SRO, the Town shall, with written approval from the School System, 

provide a replacement WPD officer or replacement officers to continue the 

Town’s obligations as herein stated for the remaining term of the Agreement 

at no change in monthly reimbursement due under the Agreement for the 

remainder of the term.   

 

3.1.2 It is expressly understood and agreed that temporary absences by the SRO shall 

be minimized to the greatest extent possible during the school year.  In the 

event the SRO is temporarily absent from work, the Town shall provide notice 

of the SRO’s absence to the affected school administrators and the School 

System’s Security Department (“Security Department”) pursuant to Section 8.0 

herein. 

 

93



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  3 

 

3.1.3 If the SRO’s temporary absence was not scheduled in advance (e.g. sickness, death 

of a family member, medical emergency, etc.) or the SRO is absent from work for 

a scheduled absence (e.g. vacation, continuing education, etc.), the Town, to the 

extent reasonably practicable, agrees to assign another officer to substitute for the 

SRO.  In no event, shall the School System be without a certified law enforcement 

officer for more than five (5) consecutive school days, and on any day that the 

School System is without a replacement certified law enforcement officer, the 

Town will increase patrols in the vicinity of the SRO’s assigned schools, 

walkthrough the SRO’s assigned schools at least three times per day during each 

day that the SRO is absent, and shall have an officer meet at least once daily with 

school administration to discuss any concerns.   

 

3.1.4 Except as otherwise may be required by the Town in its sole discretion to 

address a serious emergency, the Town should not utilize the SRO during the 

designated workday for duties other than those set forth in this Agreement.   

 

3.2 The Town agrees to provide and administer the SRO’s salary and employment benefits 

in accordance with the applicable salary schedules and employment practices of the 

Town, including but not necessarily limited to: sick leave, annual leave, retirement 

compensation, workers’ compensation insurance, dental insurance, and health 

insurance.  The SRO shall be subject to all other personnel policies and practices of the 

Town.  To the extent that there are conflicts between Town policy related to salary and 

employment benefits and the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Town policy 

related to salary and employment benefits shall control. 

 

3.3 The Town shall only assign an SRO to the School system who meets all of the 

following basic qualifications: 

 

3.3.1 Have at least three (3) years of law enforcement experience, unless this 

requirement is waived by the Parties. 

 

3.3.2 Complete an SRO training course which is approved by the North Carolina 

Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards Commission.  If the SRO 

does not possess certification of completion of an SRO training course which 

is approved by the North Carolina Criminal Justice Education and Training 

Standards Commission, the Town will ensure that the SRO participates in the 

next available SRO training course offering which is approved by the North 

Carolina Criminal Justice Education and Training Standards Commission to 

obtain this certification. 

 

3.3.3 Complete Crisis Intervention Training (“CIT”) certification through an 

accredited college, or other CIT provider approved by the Town.  If the SRO 

does not possess CIT certification, the Town will ensure that the SRO 

participates in the next available course offering to obtain CIT certification. 

 

3.3.4 Possess knowledge of the applicable federal and state laws, Town and Pitt 

County ordinances, and the School System’s policies and regulations. 

 

94



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  4 

 

3.3.5 Be capable of conducting in-depth criminal investigations and investigations 

of delinquencies. 

 

3.3.6 Possess an even temperament. 

 

3.3.7 Be capable of setting a good example for students.   

 

3.3.8 Receive annual training in school-based violence.  

 

3.3.9 Possess positive experience working with youth and/or in a school setting and 

should be willing and able to serve as mentors for students. 

 

3.3.10 Have no substantiated evidence of harassment, discrimination, improper use of 

force, or other serious performance issues in his or her work history that would 

make the officer inappropriate for performing duties as an SRO. 

 

3.3.11 Possess communication skills that would enable the officer to function 

effectively within the school environment. 

 

3.4 The Town acknowledges that the requirements of N.C.G.S. § 115C-332.1 apply to this 

Agreement.  The Town shall conduct an annual check of all sworn law enforcement 

officers assigned as SROs on the North Carolina Sex Offender and Public Protection 

Registration Program, the North Carolina Sexually Violent Predator Registration 

Program, and the National Sex Offender Registry.  The Town certifies that no 

individual may provide services to the School System under this Agreement if he or 

she appears on any of the herein stated sex offender registries. 

 

3.5 The Town agrees to provide each SRO with all equipment which is not school-specific, 

including but not limited to the following equipment: 

 

3.5.1 The standard issue firearm and rounds of ammunition for each SRO. 

 

3.5.2 Office supplies and forms required in the performance of each SRO’s duties. 

 

3.5.3 Appropriate Town vehicles to perform the duties and assignments under this 

Agreement. 

 

3.6 The Town shall ensure that the SRO maintain minimum in-service training and 

certification requirements as would normally apply to all other certified officers in 

addition to any training and certifications required for SROs.  Except in rare 

circumstances when training is not otherwise available, all training shall be conducted 

during the summer months when school is not in session.   

 

3.7 The Town shall designate a regularly employed law enforcement officer (“SRO 

Supervisor”) to supervise the assigned SRO and to coordinate the functions of the SRO 

in the SRO Program with the Security Department.  The duties of the SRO Supervisor 

shall include ensuring SRO compliance with directives and policies of the Town and the 

School System, coordinating SRO scheduling and work hours (e.g. vacation requests, sick 

leave, training, etc.), communicating all emergencies or any other useful information to the 

95



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  5 

 

School System’s Security Town, communicating any temporary SRO replacements with 

the name of the officer and contact information to the School System’s Security Town, 

addressing concerns and complaints regarding performance and conduct of SROs in 

collaboration with the School System and in accordance with Town protocols. 

 

3.8 The Town shall ensure that the SRO Supervisor and any other required representatives 

attend meetings with School System to discuss issues relevant to the SRO Program and 

its operations.  The Town shall also ensure that the SRO meets with School System 

personnel at least once annually to discuss issues relevant to the SRO Program and its 

operations.  The School System shall ensure that the scheduling of the herein stated 

meetings does not conflict with the Town’s needs, including SRO assignments. 

 

3.8.1 The School System shall provide annual training to the SRO no later than 

September 30, 2020.  This annual training shall include training on the School 

System’s behavioral support and discipline policies, the School System’s SRO 

policies and procedures, a discussion of the School System’s commitment to 

using its policies to ensure a safe and orderly educational environment and the 

fair and equitable treatment of all students when addressing student behavior, 

the role of SROs in making disciplinary referrals when necessary,  the limited 

role of SROs within the School System’s behavioral support and discipline 

system, and the documentation that must be developed and maintained by 

SROs in the SRO Program. 

 

4.0 The School System’s Obligations. 

 

4.1 The School System shall reimburse the Town for the SRO provided at a total annual cost 

of SIXTY-FOUR THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED FORTY DOLLARS and 54/100 

($64,340.54).  The School System shall reimburse the Town in twelve (12) monthly 

payments payable in advance or on the day before the last day of each month starting July 

1, 2020 and continuing through June 30, 2021.  Overtime and additional duty assignments 

are not included in this reimbursement and may not be added to the monthly invoice or 

invoiced separately. 

 
4.1.1 If the SRO ceases to serve as an SRO and no replacement is appointed and assigned 

by the Town for the remainder of the term of this Agreement, monthly payments 

due from the School System pursuant to paragraph 4.1 will be reduced accordingly. 

 

4.1.2 Except as provided in Section 4.2.2, in the event an SRO is absent or unable to 

perform the duties under this Agreement, the reasons for such absence or 

unavailability are not attributable to the School System (either the Town requires 

the SRO to be absent or the SRO is absent due to sickness, disability, otherwise 

not available), and the Town fails to provide the School System with adequate 

supplemental coverage as set forth in Section 3.1.3, then the School System may 

reduce the compensation payable to the Town under this Agreement on a prorated 

basis and such reduction shall be credited or repaid to the School System. 

 

4.1.3 In the event of an emergency when the SRO is ordered by the Town to leave his/ 

her school duty station during normal duty hours as described in Section 3.1.4 

above and to perform other services for the Town, the time spent shall not be 

considered hours worked under this Agreement.  In such an event, the monthly 

96



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  6 

 

compensation paid by the School System to the Town shall be reduced by the 

number of hours of SRO services not provided to the School System or the hours 

shall be made up in a manner determined by mutual agreement of the Parties. 

 

4.2 The maximum number of hours that the SRO shall be on-duty in a work day under this 

Agreement shall not exceed the maximum number of hours allowed by APD’s policy.  

Specific SRO duty hours at a particular school shall be set by mutual agreement 

between the School System, at the direction of the principal of the school to which the 

SRO is assigned, and the Town.  The duty hours shall begin when the SRO arrives at 

the destination assigned by the principal and shall end when the SRO leaves the 

destination assigned by the principal, thereby ending the SRO’s work day.  The actual 

duty hours for each officer shall be recorded on time sheets provided by the Town, and 

the principal or the principal’s designee of the school to which the SRO is assigned 

shall review and sign the time sheet of the SRO each work period.  The principal, or 

the principal’s designee of the school to which the SRO is assigned, shall approve in 

writing any overtime of any SRO, and such overtime costs shall be reimbursed by the 

School System to the Town upon receipt of proper documentation.  The principal of 

the school to which the SRO is assigned shall provide the Town with an executed copy 

of the approved overtime for any SRO and the amount of overtime approved.  Such 

overtime will be compensated as indicated below and pursuant to personnel policy and 

practices of the Town and APD (“Town policy”) and overtime regulations contained 

in the Fair Labor Standards Act. 

 

4.2.1 The Parties agree any overtime hours worked during the SRO’s pay period shall 

be compensated by the Town at the rate of time and one half for the overtime hours 

worked unless the SRO is permitted to adjust the SRO’s work schedule during that 

same pay period to reduce or eliminate the extra work hours, or a combination of 

both overtime pay and time off as agreed by the School System, the SRO, and the 

Town.   

 

4.2.2 Subject to the approval of the School System and Town, if an SRO elects to adjust 

the work schedule by taking time off to reduce or eliminate the extra work hours 

during a pay period, the Town will not be required to provide a law enforcement 

officer as a substitute, nor may the School System reduce the compensation paid 

to the Town for the time off taken by the SRO. 

 

4.2.3 It is understood and agreed that time spent by the SRO attending court cases arising 

from and/or out of his/ her employment as an SRO shall be considered as hours 

worked under this Agreement. 

 

4.3 The School System agrees to provide each SRO with the following: 

 

4.3.1 Suitable accommodations at school (i.e. a lockable room with limited access, 

telephone, desk, chair, computer, and filing cabinet).   

 

4.3.2 A radio with all school frequencies. 

 

4.3.3 Keys and key-card access and/or other identification to all assigned schools. 

 

97



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  7 

 

4.3.4 Reasonable opportunities to address students, teachers, school administrators, 

and parents about criminal justice, safety, and security issues. 

 

4.3.5 A dedicated parking space in an approved location for the SRO patrol car. 

 

4.3.6 A School System-issued cell phone. 

 

5.0 Employment, Assignment, and Control of School Resource Officers. 

 

5.1 The SRO under this Agreement will be employees of the Town and not an employee 

of the School System.  The SRO will be subject to the administration, supervision, and 

control of the Town, except as such administration, supervision, and control is subject 

to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

5.2 The Town, in its sole discretion, shall have the power and authority to hire, discharge, 

and discipline the SRO.  However, the School System shall evaluate annually the SRO 

Program and the performance of the SRO on forms developed jointly by the Parties 

and attached hereto as Attachment C.  Attachment C is hereby incorporated into this 

Agreement.  It is further understood that the School System’s evaluation of the SRO is 

advisory only and that the Town retains the final authority to evaluate each SRO.   

 

5.3 In addition to annual evaluations as herein stated, school administrators have been 

instructed by the School System to immediately advise the Security Specialist, John 

Jenkins, of the Security Department (the “Security Specialist”), in writing, if the SRO 

is not effectively performing his or her duties or responsibilities, and/or receives a 

complaint from a staff member, student, parent, or other member of the school 

community about actions or conduct of the SRO.  The Security Specialist will report 

written complaints to the SRO Supervisor, provide a copy of the written complaint to 

the SRO Supervisor, undertake an investigation into the allegations of the complaints, 

prepare a written investigative report which shall include findings of the Security 

Department’s investigation (“Security Department investigative report”), and shall 

provide the SRO Supervisor with a copy of the Security Department investigative 

report.  

 

5.3.1 If a school administrator observes or is advised that the SRO is continuing to 

engage in conduct that was the subject of a written complaint or a school 

administrator makes a third written complaint within two (2) academic years 

to the Security Department about the SRO and the allegations of this third 

written complaint within two (2) academic years is substantiated by the 

Security Department in a Security Department investigative report, the 

Security Department shall then recommend to the SRO Supervisor that the 

SRO be removed from the SRO Program, shall prepare a written report 

recommending removal, which shall include the factual basis for the 

recommendation and contain the written approval by the School System’s 

Superintendent (“Security Department removal recommendation report”), and 

shall provide the SRO Supervisor with a copy of the Security Department 

removal recommendation report. 

 

98



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  8 

 

5.3.2 Upon receipt of the Security Department removal recommendation report and 

if upon review by the Town, there is verifiable, documented evidence of 

ongoing performance issues that have persisted despite the SRO being 

provided notice and an opportunity to improve, the Town shall agree to remove 

the SRO from serving in the SRO Program. 

 

5.3.3 In addition, if the Security Department documents SRO misconduct that 

threatens the health or safety of students or staff, the Security Department will 

immediately notify the SRO Supervisor of the SRO’s misconduct and provide 

copies of such all records documenting such misconduct.  The Town shall 

promptly remove the SRO from serving in the SRO Program until the 

completion of the Town’s review of the misconduct as alleged, consistent with 

the Town’s policies and ordinances and this Agreement. 

 

5.3.4 Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing in this Agreement shall prohibit the 

School System’s Superintendent from preventing the access of any individual, 

including the assigned SRO, to School System property if the School System’s 

Superintendent determines it is in the best interest of the health and safety of 

students.  Likewise, the Town reserves the right to remove the SRO from duty 

as an SRO in the SRO Program. 

 

5.3.5 Additionally, notwithstanding the foregoing, the School System understands 

that any and all information communicated or otherwise provided to the Town 

and/or gathered by the Town regarding a School System-initiated complaint or 

otherwise regarding the SRO, including but not limited to the School System’s 

annual evaluation of the SRO and/or the results of any School System 

investigation, is part of the SRO’s personnel file, is confidential pursuant to 

N.C.G.S. § 160A-168, and is not subject to inspection except as allowed by 

N.C.G.S. § 160A-168(c). 

 

5.4 The School System reserves the right to request that the contract services of an 

individual SRO be terminated if the principal-SRO relationship cannot, in the 

discretion of the School System, be successfully negotiated. 

 

6.0 Insurance and Indemnification. 

 

6.1 While working as an SRO in the SRO Program, the SRO shall have the same 

jurisdiction, powers, rights, privileges, and immunities (including those relating to the 

defense of civil actions and payment of judgments) as a law enforcement officer 

normally possesses.  While on duty at a school location, the SRO shall respond to 

requests and suggestions by the principal, but shall remain subject to the lawful 

operational commands of his / her superior officers in the Town. 

 

6.2 Except as may be provided for a remedy for breach of the financial obligations of this 

Agreement: 

 

6.2.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the School System shall indemnify and 

hold harmless the Town, its officials and officers (elected and non-elected), 

employees, agents, representatives, and consultants against any liability arising 

99



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  9 

 

out of or in connection with any of the operations or obligations of the School 

System, including but not limited to any said operations or obligations 

subcontracted or assigned to a different person or entity from any and all 

claims, demands, damages, losses, lawsuits, and other proceedings, judgments, 

causes of action, liabilities, civil penalties, charges, costs, and expenses, 

including without limitation attorneys’ fees, which are attributable to bodily or 

personal injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of 

tangible property caused by acts or omissions of the School System or anyone 

for whose acts the School System may be liable, regardless of whether or not 

such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified 

hereunder.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce 

other rights or obligations of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to a 

party or person described in this section. 

 

6.2.2 Likewise, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Town shall indemnify and 

hold harmless the School System, its officials and officers (elected and non-

elected), employees, agents, representatives, and consultants against any 

liability arising out of or in connection with any of the operations or obligations 

of the Town, including but not limited to any said operations or obligations 

subcontracted or assigned to a different person or entity from any and all 

claims, demands, damages, losses, lawsuits, and other proceedings, judgments, 

causes of action, liabilities, civil penalties, charges, costs, and expenses, 

including without limitation attorneys’ fees, which are attributable to bodily or 

personal injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of 

tangible property caused by acts or omissions of the Town or anyone for whose 

acts the Town may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, 

loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder.  Such 

obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or 

obligations of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to a party or person 

described in this section. 

 

6.3 The Town shall hold the School System free, harmless, and indemnified from and 

against any and all claims, suits, or causes of action arising out of allegations or unfair 

or unlawful employment practices brought by the SRO, which are attributable solely 

to the Town. 

 

7.0 Term of the Agreement.  The term of this Agreement is one (1) year commencing on July 1, 

2020 and ending on June 30, 2021.   
 

8.0 Notice.  Any notice or other communication provided for herein by a Party shall be in writing 

and served upon the other Party by either (A) hand-delivery, (B) electronic mail or facsimile 

transmission, and/or (C) by overnight courier service (with all fees prepaid) to the receiving 

Party as follows, or to any other address which either Party may hereafter designate for itself 

in writing: 
 

 

 

 

 

100



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  10 

 

FOR THE TOWN 

  
 

Town of Winterville 

2751 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC 28590 

Telephone: (252) 215-2395 

Facsimile: (252) 215-2461 

Email: ryan.willhite@wintervillenc.com  

(Ryan Willhite, Chief of Police) 

With a Copy to: 

Town of Winterville 

2751 Railroad Street 

Winterville, NC 28590 

Telephone: (252) 215-2340 

Facsimile: (252) 215-2451 

Email: terri.parker@wintervillenc.com 

(Terri Parker, Town Manager) 
 

FOR THE SCHOOL SYSTEM 
 

Pitt County Schools 

School Security Department 

300 Sylvania Street 

Winterville, North Carolina 28950 

Telephone:  (252) 830-2313 

Facsimile:    (252) 830-1277 

Email:  jenkinj@pitt.k12.nc.us  

(John Jenkins, Security Specialist) 

Email:  hudsonj@pitt.k12.nc.us  

(Jeff Hudson, Security Specialist) 

With a Copy to: 

The Pitt County Board of Education 

1717 West Fifth Street 

Greenville, North Carolina 27834 

Telephone:  (252) 830-4227 

Facsimile:   (252) 830-0099 

Email:  ehodson@pitt.k12.nc.us  

(Emma J. Hodson, Attorney for The Pitt 

County Board of Education) 

 

If either Party hereto changes its address or other contact information for purposes of this 

Agreement, the Party so changing shall give the other Party appropriate written notice of 

change of address in the manner specified above.   

 

9.0 Termination of Agreement.  This Agreement shall automatically terminate on July 1, 2020 if 

the School System has not received funding from the North Carolina School Safety Grant 

Program—School Resource Officers Grant.  Additionally, this Agreement may be terminated 

by either Party with or without cause (for convenience) upon sixty (60) days’ written notice to 

the other Party as provided in Section 8.0 herein. Termination of this Agreement may only be 

accomplished as provided herein.  In the event this Agreement is terminated, compensation 

will be made to the Town for all services performed prior to the date of termination. 

 

10.0 Arm’s Length Negotiation.  The Parties further agree that this Agreement is to be deemed to 

have been prepared jointly by the Parties hereto, after arm’s length negotiations, and that any 

ambiguity or uncertainty existing herein, if any, shall not be interpreted against the other Party.  

The Parties further agree to sign any and all instruments or documents necessary to carry out 

the full purpose and intent of this Agreement.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties 

and their successors in interest. 

 

11.0 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and 

supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, related to the 

subject matter of this Agreement.   

 

12.0 Amendment and Modification.  This Agreement may be modified or amended by mutual 

consent of the Parties as long as the amendment is executed in the same fashion as this 

101

mailto:ryan.willhite@wintervillenc.com
mailto:terri.parker@wintervillenc.com
mailto:jenkinj@pitt.k12.nc.us
mailto:hudsonj@pitt.k12.nc.us
mailto:ehodson@pitt.k12.nc.us


Winterville PD SRO Agreement  11 

 

Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties may develop additional policies and 

procedures by consent to implement this Agreement, including but not limited to policies and 

procedures regarding reporting requirements and sharing information between the School 

System and the Town.  Further, each Party may develop internal policies and procedures to 

implement their respective obligations under this Agreement. 

 

13.0 Consideration.  For and in consideration of the Town providing the SRO for participation in 

the SRO Program as described herein, the School System agrees to reimburse the Town for the 

cost of the SRO, as described in this Agreement. 

 

14.0 Severability.  The non-enforceability or illegality of any provision of this Agreement shall not 

render the other provisions unenforceable, illegal, or invalid. 

 

15.0 Headings.  The paragraph headings contained herein are only for convenience and reference, 

and are not intended to be part of this Agreement or in any manner to define, limit, or describe 

the scope and intent of this Agreement for the particular paragraph to which they refer. 

 

16.0 E-Verify Compliance.  The Parties shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 

64 of the North Carolina General Statues.  Further, if either Party utilizes a subcontractor, the 

Party shall require the subcontractor to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 

64 of the North Carolina General Statues.  The Parties represent that they and their 

subcontractors are in compliance with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the North 

Carolina General Statutes.   

 

17.0 Governing Law; Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North 

Carolina.  The venue for initiation of any such action shall be Pitt County, North Carolina. 

 

18.0 No Third Party Benefits.  There are no third party beneficiaries to this Agreement.  Nothing 

in this Agreement shall create or give to third parties any claim or right of action against either 

of the Parties, or their employees, agents, contractors, officers, officials, governing boards, or 

successors in interest. 

 

19.0 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which 

shall be deemed an original, but all of which taken together constitute one and the same 

instrument. 

 

 IN WITNESS HEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the 

day and year first written above. 

 

THE PITT COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION  TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

 

 

 

  

Ethan A. Lenker  Terri L. Parker 

Superintendent  Town Manager 

 

 

 

  

102



Winterville PD SRO Agreement  12 

 

Matthew Johnson  Ryan Willhite 

Assistant Superintendent of Operations  Chief of Police 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

  

Emma J. Hodson 

Attorney for The Pitt County Board of 

Education 

 E. Keen Lassiter 

Town Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATION: 

 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 

Fiscal Control Act. 

 

 

 

  

Debra Baggett 

Chief Financial Officer, Pitt County Schools 

 Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

103



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

PITT COUNTY SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM MANUAL 

2020-2021 

 

 

 
  

104



2 
 

 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM MANUAL 
2020-2021 

 
I. Goals of the SRO Program, Purpose of this Manual, and Prohibition on Unlawful 

Discrimination  
 
The Pitt County Board of Education is grateful for strong relationships with six law enforcement 
agencies.  Through the Board’s partnerships with the Ayden Police Department, Farmville Police 
Department, Greenville Police Department, Grifton Police Department, Pitt County Sheriff’s 
Office, and Winterville Police Department, Pitt County Schools is able to have an efficient and 
cohesive School Resource Officer (“SRO”) Program with the primary goals of (1) providing a safe, 
inclusive, and positive learning environment for all students, educators, administrators, 
volunteers, and other members of the school community and (2) building positive relationships 
between law enforcement officers and school administrators, parents, and students. 
 
The purpose of this manual is to ensure that key stakeholders (i.e. principals, assistant principals, 
central office staff, and SROs) have a clear understanding of the role and duties of SROs, the 
role and duties of school system administrators, how SROs and school system administrators 
should collaborate to achieve the goals of the SRO program, and limitations on the relationship 
between SROs and the school system. 
 
All key stakeholders should be aware that the SRO Program is to be operated without 
discrimination against any person on the basis of sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin, 
age or disability.  Under no circumstances will any stakeholder, the Board, or representative of 
the law enforcement agencies supplying SROs engage in any conduct in violation of state or 
federal anti-discrimination law in their interactions with students, including but not limited to any 
retaliation for reporting, alleging, or filing complaints concerning any alleged discrimination. 
 
II. The Imposition of School Discipline 

 
A. Routine Disciplinary Matters 

 
1. Principals and assistant principals (“school administrators”) shall be solely responsible 

for implementing the Student Code of Conduct and school discipline policies.  School 
administrators, not the SRO, have primary responsibility for maintaining order in the 
school environment and for investigating and responding to school disciplinary matters. 

 
2. The SRO shall refer any reports or concerns relating to student discipline to the principal 

or designee and shall not independently investigate or administer consequences for 
violations of the Student Code of Conduct or any school disciplinary rules. 

 
3. The SRO should generally not have any further involvement in routine disciplinary 

matters, such as tardiness, loitering, noncompliance, the use of inappropriate language, 
dress code violations, minor classroom disruptions, and disrespectful behaviors and 
other similar minor infractions of school rules. 

 
4. The principal or assistant principal shall only request SRO assistance when necessary 

to protect the physical safety of staff, students, or others in the school environment. 
 

5. The SRO will not be involved in the questioning of students initiated and conducted by 

105



3 
 

school personnel in disciplinary matters unless requested by the principal or assistant 
principal to maintain a safe and secure school environment.  If the SRO’s presence is 
requested under these circumstances, the SRO shall confine his or her involvement to 
what is reasonably necessary to protect the safety and security of members of the school 
community and shall not lead the investigation or actively question students. 

 
B. Joint Law Enforcement and School Disciplinary Investigations 
 

1. In cases where school disciplinary investigations and law enforcement investigations into 
criminal activity1 overlap and relate to matters affecting health or safety (e.g., when both 
the school administration and SRO are investigating matters related to the presence of 
drugs or weapons on campus), it may be appropriate for school administrators and SROs 
to work in tandem. In such events, law enforcement investigation by the SRO takes 
precedence over school disciplinary issues. In such circumstances, the SRO shall be 
mindful of and clarify his or her role as a law enforcement officer conducting a law 
enforcement investigation when interviewing student witnesses, particularly students 
suspected of criminal wrongdoing. 

 
III. Investigation of Criminal Matters 

 
A. SRO Initiated Investigations into Criminal Activity at School 
 

1. SROs may initiate appropriate law enforcement actions to address criminal matters, 
including matters that threaten the safety and security of the school or its occupants, 
and/or intervene with staff or students (with or without a referral from the principal or 
assistant principal) when necessary to ensure the immediate safety of persons in the 
school environment in light of an actual or imminent threat to health or safety. 

 
2. However, any such intervention shall be reasonable in scope and duration in light of the 

nature of the circumstances presented and shall be reasonably calculated to protect the 
physical safety of members within the school community, while minimizing, to the extent 
possible, any unintended negative effects on students. 

 
3. Additionally, all law enforcement actions and interventions to protect the safety of others 

shall be consistent with all applicable laws, regulations, and policies. 
 

4. SROs shall evaluate criminal activity committed on or adjacent to school property to 
determine if further actions are required by law enforcement. 

 
5. Use of force may be implemented pursuant to the SRO’s law enforcement agency’s 

procedures and protocols as well as all applicable laws, if objectively reasonable based 
on the totality of the circumstances and shall not be excessive, arbitrary, or malicious. 

 
6. SROs shall also, whenever possible, advise the principal before requesting additional 

law enforcement assistance on campus and shall request such assistance only when 
necessary to protect the safety or security of those present on the school campus. 

 
7. Criminal investigations, arrests, and taking juveniles into temporary custody in 

accordance with Section 7B-1901 of the North Carolina General Statutes by SROs will 

                                                           
1 For purposes of this Manual, the word crime or criminal includes investigations into delinquency. 

106



4 
 

be conducted in accordance with all applicable legal requirements, including all 
applicable laws, regulations, and policies governing the use of force, interrogations, 
searches, and arrests. 

 
B. Investigative (Searches, Questioning, etc.), Temporary Custody, and Arrest 

Procedures 
 

1. An SRO shall promptly notify the principal or an assistant principal whenever he or she 
asks a student questions of an investigative nature or takes any direct law enforcement 
action against a student; however, notification may be withheld until deemed appropriate 
by the SRO if such notification would endanger a student or any other person or 
compromise an ongoing criminal investigation.   

 
2. An SRO shall promptly notify principal or assistant principal and the parent(s) or 

guardian(s) of any student arrested for a criminal offense or taken into temporary custody 
pursuant to Section 7B-1900 of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

 

3. All SRO questioning or searches of students suspected of criminal wrongdoing and/or 
searches of property by an SRO must be in accordance with applicable law.  In particular, 
SROs shall be aware of the differing standards governing searches by law enforcement 
officers for law enforcement purposes as compared with searches by school 
administrators in connection with student discipline.  Except as set out in Paragraph 1of 
this Subsection, SROs should contact either the principal or assistant principal before 
questioning or searching a student regarding an investigation into suspected criminal 
activity to determine if either the principal or assistant principal should be present during 
the questioning or searching. 

 

4. If a SRO questions, searches, arrests, or takes a student into temporary custody at 
school, all reasonable efforts will be made by the SRO and the principal or assistant 
principal to remove the student from other students and bystanders or otherwise to not 
bring undue attention to the student. 

 

5. At no time shall any SRO request that any PCS employee lead or conduct a search of a 
student for law enforcement purposes or have a PCS employee act as an agent of law 
enforcement. The SRO shall not conduct or participate in searches of students or their 
belongings in school disciplinary investigations unless their assistance is requested by 
school personnel to maintain a safe and secure school environment. 

 
C. Non-School Investigations 

 
1. SROs shall refrain from questioning students at school regarding non-school related 

matters unless the    SRO has a warrant or unless questioning, searching, arresting, or 
taking a student into temporary custody on school property at that time is necessary, in 
the discretion of the SRO, for the success of a law enforcement investigation or to 
prevent injury or crime. 

 
IV. SROs as a Mentors and Members of the School Community 

 
A. The SRO shall conduct himself or herself as a role model at all times and in all facets of 

his or her work and shall seek to establish a strong rapport with school administrators, 
faculty, staff, students, and others associated with the school.  SROs shall also encourage 
students to develop positive attitudes towards the school, education, law enforcement 

107



5 
 

officers, and positive living in general. 
 

B. SROs are strongly encouraged to attend meetings of parent and faculty groups to solicit 
their support and understanding of the SRO Program and to promote awareness of law 
enforcement functions during the SRO’s regular duty hours. 

 
C. SROs shall be familiar with community agencies that offer assistance to students and their 

families, including but not limited to mental health services and drug treatment centers, 
and shall provide information on such agencies to students, parents, and/or school 
administrators when appropriate. In addition, the SRO shall provide information to the 
school principal, students, and parents regarding additional resources offered by 
community agencies or the agencies providing afterschool and summer programs and 
opportunities for youth. 

 
D. SROs may answer questions that students have about North Carolina criminal or juvenile 

laws but should not to give legal advice. 
 
E. SROs shall counsel students in special situations, such as students suspected of 

engaging in criminal misconduct, when requested by the principal, the principal's 
designee, or the parents of a student. 

 
F. SROs shall attend meetings of Students Against Destructive Decisions (SADD) groups in 

schools and SADD groups as requested.  SADD groups are student-run programs that 
educate the school community about issues related to drug and alcohol abuse, sexual 
activity, depression, bullying, and suicide within the student population.   

 
G. SROs shall, whenever possible and in accordance with guidance from the school principal 

or designee, participate in or attend school functions during the SRO’s regular duty hours, 
in order to assist in the safe and peaceful operation of school-related programs.   

 
H. SROs shall wear the official law enforcement uniform or other apparel issued by their 

respective agencies at all times while serving on school property and shall make best 
efforts to maintain high visibility at all times when practical and safe to do so, especially in 
areas where incidents of crime or violence are most likely to occur. 

 
I. SROs are not to be used on a daily or routine basis for traffic direction at or adjacent to 

school property.     
 

J. The SRO shall remain on the school grounds during normal school hours, except when 
necessary to attend to a law enforcement emergency, trainings, court proceedings, or, on 
limited occasions, official law enforcement business off-campus.  With the exception of 
emergency situations out of the SRO’s control, the SRO shall give the SRO supervisor, 
the principal or designee, and Pitt County Schools Security Specialist, John Jenkins, 
reasonable advance notice of any times when the SRO is not expected to be on campus 
during normal school hours. 

 
V. Communication Between School Administrators and SROs 

 
A. At the School Level 

 
1. Open communication between SROs and school principals is encouraged at all times to 

108



6 
 

ensure a collaborative and productive relationship. 
 

2. SROs, school principals, and members of the administrative team designated by the 

principal are expected to meet on a regular basis, both formally and informally, to discuss 
school safety concerns, duties, and responsibilities.  SROs, school principals, and 

members of the administrative team designated by the principal are all expected to 
initiate such meetings to promote open and strong communication. 

 
3. The Board authorizes principals to report any crimes that occur on campus to the 

assigned SRO in compliance with all applicable state laws and Board policies that 
require school officials to report criminal acts occurring on school grounds to law 
enforcement.   

 
a. Presently, criminal offenses that must be reported to the SRO include: (1) assault 

resulting in serious personal injury; (2) assault involving the use of a weapon; (3) 
assault on school officials, employees, or volunteers; (4) making bomb threats or 
engaging in bomb hoaxes; (5) willfully burning a school building; (6) homicide; (7) 
kidnapping; (8) unlawful, underage sales, purchase, provision, possession, or 
consumption of alcoholic beverages; (9) possession of controlled substances in 
violation of law; (10) possession of a firearm; (11) possession of a weapon; (12) 
rape; (13) robbery with a dangerous weapon; (14) sexual assault (not involving rape 
or sexual offense); (15) sexual offense; and (16) taking indecent liberties with a 
minor. 

 
B. With General Administration and Principals 

 
1. During the months of September 2020 through June 2021, SROs shall provide to the Pitt 

County Schools Security Specialist, John Jenkins, and Pitt County Schools Director of 
Student Services, Karen Harrington, a monthly report of the aggregated number of 
referrals.  A copy of these reports must be transmitted to the Security Specialist and 
Director of Student Services no later than the 5th of the following month (e.g. the report 
for September 2020 should be transmitted no later than October 5, 2020). 

 
2. During the months of September 2020 through June 2021, SROs shall provide to the 

Security Specialist and Director of Student Services with a report of all school-based or 
related actions taken by the SRO, all matters that were referred to the court system, the 
outcome of any matter referred to the court system (if the matter has been decided in 
the reporting period), and the involvement of Pitt County Schools or an individual school 
in the proceeding (e.g. if district employees or students were called as witnesses).  A 
copy of these reports must be transmitted to the Security Specialist and Director of 
Student Services no later than the fifth day of the following month (e.g. the report for 
September 2020 should be transmitted no later than October 5, 2020). 

 
3. During the months of September 2020 through June 2021, SROs shall perform monthly 

security assessments for each of the SRO’s assigned schools.  Copies of the security 
assessment reports shall be forwarded to the Security Specialist and Principals no later 
than the last day of the month (e.g. the report for September 2020 is due no later than 
September 30, 2020). 

 
VI. Transporting PCS Students  

 

109



7 
 

A. SROs shall not transport any students in their vehicles unless one a student is a victim of 
a crime, under arrest, or some other emergency exists. 

 
B. SROs shall notify the school principal before removing a student from campus. 

 
C. SROs shall not transport students in their personal vehicles.  If an SRO does not have an 

agency vehicle, then a patrol unit shall be dispatched to assist the SRO. 
 
VII. Sharing Education Records 

 
A. Pitt County Schools officials are required to comply with the Family Educational Rights 

and Privacy Act (“FERPA”).  Under FERPA, education records (i.e. records, files, 
documents, and other materials, including security footage, that are directly related to a 
student and maintained by Pitt County Schools or by parties acting for Pitt County Schools) 
may only be disclosed to SROs in certain circumstances.   
 

B. SROs shall not automatically have access to educational records or personally identifiable 
information about a student in those records simply because they are conducting a 
criminal investigation involving a student or for general non-specific purposes.  
Circumstances where school officials may disclose relevant educational records and 
personally identifiable information contained in those records with SROs include, the 
following: 
 

1. The student’s parent or the guardian or the student (if 18 years of age or older) consents 
in writing to disclose education records to the SRO; 

 
a. NOTE: Consent must be obtained using Pitt County Schools’ FERPA Authorization 

Form which is included in this manual as Appendix I. 
 

2. The information sought (again for a specific purpose) is directory information (e.g. 
student home address, student phone number, etc.); 

 
a. NOTE: Students’ parents or guardians or students who are 18 years of age or older 

may opt out of sharing directory information.  School system officials are NOT 
permitted to share directory information if an opt out has occurred.  

 
b. ALSO NOTE: School officials may not confirm non-directory information to an SRO.  

For example, if an SRO provides a student’s name and social security number (or 
other non-directory information) to school officials and is seeking additional 
directory information, school officials may not use social security number or other 
non-directory information to search for the student’s records as opposed to a name 
because using non-directory information to search for a student is considered to be 
confirming the accuracy of non-directory information to the SRO. 

 
3. Pursuant to a subpoena or court order; 

 
a. NOTE: Prior to complying with the subpoena, FERPA requires school officials to 

make a reasonable effort to notify the parent, guardian, or student who is over 18 
years of age of the subpoena or court order to give an opportunity to the parent, 
guardian, or eligible student to object or seek other protective action.  School 
officials should contact in-house counsel upon the receipt of any subpoena for 

110



8 
 

educational records.  A template of an Order for Release of Educational Records 
that legal counsel for SROs may utilize to obtain education records is included in 
this manual as Appendix II. 

 
b. ALSO NOTE: There are three situations where making a reasonable effort to notify 

parents, guardians, or students over 18 years of age is not required: (1) a court 
issuing a federal grand jury subpoena may direct school officials to keep the 
existence or contents of the subpoena confidential even as to the involved student 
and/ or parents; (2) a subpoena issued for any other law enforcement purpose may 
similarly direct the school to keep the subpoena confidential; and (3) federal law 
enforcement authorities may obtain ex parte secret subpoenas of student records 
in terrorism investigations. 

 
4. A health or safety emergency exists; 

 
a. NOTE: School officials may disclose educational records under this exception to 

“appropriate persons” without consent in connection with an emergency when 
school officials perceive an “articulable and significant threat” to the health or safety 
of the student or others under the totality of the circumstances.   

 
i. The standard for when a health or safety emergency exists is flexible.  School 

officials should generally not release education records based on a not fully 
formed sense that a student “might” do something at some indeterminate point 
in the future, but they are also not required to delay a release until the moment 
a student is on-campus with a gun.  Ultimately, school officials need to be able 
to articulate a basis for reasonably believing that a student poses a significant 
risk of harm to self or others. 

 
ii. Examples of articulable threats might include (but are not limited to) students 

making statements about suicide or violence toward others, displaying 
unusually erratic or angry behaviors, or engaging in similar conduct that school 
officials would reasonably see as posing a risk of serious harm.  By contrast, 
merely knowing that a student has access to a large cache of weapons at 
home—without accompanying behavioral red flags—would likely not rise to the 
level of an articulable or significant threat. 

 
b. SROs and other law enforcement officials are considered appropriate persons who 

need information to protect the health or safety of the student or others. 
 

5. Records concern registered sex offenders and the information was provided to school 
officials pursuant to federal law (i.e. Jacob Wetterling Crimes Against Children and 
Sexually Violent Offender Registration Act). 

 
C. School officials and SROs should be aware that it is the position of Pitt County Schools 

that Section 7B-3100 of the North Carolina General Statutes does not create a FERPA 
exception that allows for the sharing of records related to the “juvenile justice system.”  
However, FERPA does permit school officials to report child abuse and neglect to DSS. 
 

D. Information obtained through a school official’s personal knowledge or observation (e.g. a 
teacher overhears a student make a threatening remark, observes a change in a student’s 
behavior, or reads a threat posted on the school’s social media page) is not an education 

111



9 
 

record and can be disclosed to SROs even if an education record exists containing the 
information.   
 

1. NOTE: The general rule that personal knowledge and observations can be shared with 
law enforcement DOES NOT apply to school officials who have a role in making a 
determination that generates a protected educational record (e.g. a psychologist may 
not disclose to an SRO information learned about a student’s behavior that the 
psychologist used in a report or assessment to determine a student’s eligibility for special 
education; a principal may not advise an SRO that a student is suspended; etc.).   

 
VIII. Evaluation of SROs 

 
A. Each SRO is employed by the Ayden Police Department, Farmville Police Department, 

Greenville Police Department, Grifton Police Department, Pitt County Sheriff’s Office, or 
Winterville Police Department.  Although personnel decisions are ultimately made by an 
SRO’s employer, principals shall provide annual advisory evaluations of SROs utilizing a 
form developed by the Board and the six law enforcement agencies.  The Pitt County 
Schools Security Specialist, John Jenkins, shall collect evaluation forms from principals 
and solicit feedback from the superintendent and other administrators annually.  The 
Security Specialist shall then submit the evaluation forms and any other feedback to the 
applicable law enforcement agency. 
 

B. In addition to annual evaluations, principals and school system administrators should 
immediately advise the Pitt County Schools Security Specialist, John Jenkins, in writing, 
if an SRO is not effectively performing his or her duties or responsibilities and/or a staff 
member, student, parent, or other member of the school community has complained about 
actions of the SRO.  Depending on where the SRO is employed, the Security Specialist 
will report written complaints to the officer supervising SROs.  The Security Specialist will 
undertake an investigation into the allegations of the complaint, gather written witness 
statements from any individuals with information relevant to the complaint, and shall 
complete a written report of the investigator’s findings and conclusion as to whether the 
allegations of the complaint were substantiated or not.  The written report shall also be 
submitted to the supervising officer.  

112



10 
 

APPENDIX I 
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR RELEASE OF EDUCATION RECORDS 
 

I, ________________________________________ (name of parent/guardian/student if 18 or older), hereby give 

permission for officials of Pitt County Schools to disclose confidential education records of the Student, 

__________________________________________ (name of student), and/or any personally identifiable 

information contained in those education records to the following (name of recipient and address): 
 

 

 

 
 

The education records governed by this waiver shall include (check all that apply): 
 

 Transcripts, report cards, and other grade reports 
 

 

 Attendance information 
 

 

 Disciplinary records 
 

 

 Cumulative file 
 

 

 Special education file 
 

 

 Immunization records 
 

 

 Other health records 
 

 

 Other (please specify):  
 

These records may be disclosed (check one): 
 

 Upon the authorized person’s request; OR 
 

 One time only, upon execution of this consent. 
 

This information is provided for the following purpose: 
 

 To provide relevant information to the Student’s medical provider(s); 
 

 To assist in meeting the Student’s educational needs; OR 
 

 Other (please specify):  

 

I understand that I may revoke this authorization at any time by providing my signed written notice to the 

appropriate Pitt County Schools officials.  Absent such notice, this authorization shall expire on 

_________________________________ (date). 
 

I acknowledge that this form constitutes my written consent to release written consent to the release of confidential, 

personally identifiable information that is protected under the federal Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act 

(FERPA) and state law governing the confidentiality of student records and personally identifiable information 

contained in such records.  I certify that I am more than eighteen years old and that I have authority to execute this 

authorization. 
   

Signature of parent/guardian/student 18 or older  Date 

   

Name (please print)   

   

Address City State             Zip 

113



11 
 

 

APPENDIX II-COURT ORDER TEMPLATE 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF PITT 

IN THE GENERAL COURT OF JUSTICE 
DISTRICT COURT DIVISION 

 
 
 
IN RE: __________________________ 

 
 
 

ORDER FOR RELEASE OF EDUCATIONAL 
RECORDS 

 
 
 

THIS CAUSE HAVING COME ON TO BE HEARD before the undersigned District Court Judge 

presiding, and it appears to the court: 

 

1. That there is an ongoing criminal investigation by **OFFICER’S NAME** of the **NAME OF LAW 

ENFORCEMENT AGENCY** regarding **TYPE OF INCIDENT** that occurred on or about **DATE 

OF INCIDENT** which is a violation of the North Carolina General Statute ______. 

 

2. That the alleged offenses occurred at ________ School, a public school that is part of the Pitt 

County Public School System. 

 

3. Upon information and belief, **INFORMATION YOU ARE SEEKING** (for example there is video 

surveillance of the crime scene and there are statements to school administrators made by four 

students associated with this investigation). 

 

4. Upon information and belief, said video surveillance and student statements are considered 

"education records" of one or more public school students under the Family Educational Rights 

and Privacy Act (FERPA), 20 U.S.C. § 1232g, and its implementing regulations, and contain 

information relevant and material to the investigation described above. 

 

5. Under the relevant FERPA regulation, 34 C.F.R § 99.3l(a)(9), an educational agency or institution 

may disclose personally identifiable information from an education record of a student without 

written parental consent if the disclosure is to comply with a judicial order or lawfully issued 

subpoena. The same regulation also provides that the educational agency or institution may make 

such disclosures only if the agency or institution makes a reasonable effort to notify the parent or 

eligible student of the order or subpoena in advance of compliance, so that the parent or eligible 

student may seek protective action. 

 

6. That it is in the best interest of justice and the enforcement of the laws of the State of North 

Carolina to have this information disclosed to law enforcement for use in the criminal investigation 

described above, subject to the rights of the parent or eligible student whose records would be 

disclosed to seek protective action from this Court prior to disclosure. 

 
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that any **INFORMATION YOU ARE SEEKING** contained in student 

education records maintained by school officials at ________ School as described in this Order be 

released to **OFFICER’S NAME** of the **NAME OF LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY** for use in the 

criminal investigation of this matter, after appropriate school officials have first provided reasonable notice 

to the parents or eligible students of their rights to seek protective action from this Court.  

 

 

This the_____ of ________, 20___. 
 
     _____________________________ 
     Presiding Judge

114



 
 

ATTACHMENT B 

SRO PROGRAM MANUAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

(To be Completed by ALL SROs, Principals, and Assistant Principals) 

 
I, ___________________________________ (print name), am a key stakeholder in the success of Pitt 

County Schools’ SRO Program. 

 

As a key stakeholder, I acknowledge that the success of the SRO Program requires collaboration between 

principals, assistant, principals and SROs and a clear understanding of the roles and duties of school 

administrators and SROs.   

 

By signing below, I acknowledge that I have read the SRO Program Manual developed by the Pitt County 

Board of Education and local law enforcement agencies to develop an understanding of the roles and duties 

of school administrators and SROs.   

 

Principal/AP/ SRO Signature:  

  

  Date:  

    
 

**THIS FORM SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO THE PITT COUNTY SCHOOLS SECURITY DEPARTMENT ON 

OR BEFORE OCTOBER 31, 2020.  THE FORM SHOULD BE SENT VIA E-MAIL TO JOHN JENKINS 

(jjenkins@pitt.k12.nc.us).  

 

 

115

mailto:jjenkins@pitt.k12.nc.us


 
 

ATTACHMENT C 

SRO PERFORMANCE EVALUATION METRIC 2020-2021 ACADEMIC YEAR 

(TO BE COMPLETED BY SCHOOL SYSTEM ADMINISTRATORS) 
 

School Name:   
 

Completed By: 
  

 

Date Completed: 
  

 

SRO Name: 
   

    

Please respond to each of the following by writing either YES or NO. 
  

Question Response 

Q1: SRO remains on campus during normal school hours, except when necessary 

to attend to a law enforcement emergency, trainings, meetings, or official law 

enforcement business off-campus. 

 

Q2: SRO makes best efforts to maintain high visibility at all times when practical 

and safe to do so, especially in areas where incidents of crime or violence are 

most likely to occur. 

 

Q3: SRO participates in or attend school functions during regular duty hours in 

order to assure the peaceful operation of school-related programs. 
 

Q4: SRO conducts himself/ herself as a role model at all times and in all facets of 

the job and seeks to establish a strong rapport with staff, faculty, students, and 

others associated with the school and encourages students to develop positive 

attitudes toward school, education, law enforcement officers, and positive 

living in general. 

 

Q5: SRO initiates appropriate law enforcement actions to address criminal 

matters, including matter that threaten the safety and security of the school or 

its occupants, and/or intervenes with staff or students (with or without a 

referral from school staff) when necessary to ensure the immediate safety of 

persons in the school environment in light of an actual or imminent threat to 

health or safety. 

 

Q6: SRO refers any reports or concerns relating to student discipline to the 

principal or designees and does not independently investigate or administer 

consequences for violations of the Student Code of Conduct or any school 

disciplinary rules. 

 

Q7: SRO meets with principal and members of the administrative team 

designated by the principal on a regular basis, both formally and informally, 

to discuss school safety concerns, duties, and responsibilities. 

 

Q8: SRO reports any safety concerns to the school principal and/or designee and 

confers with the school principal to develop plans and strategies to prevent 

and/or minimize dangerous situations on or near the campus involving 

students at school-related activities. 

 

*If you would like to provide any comments regarding your SRO or the SRO Program and/or if an 

answer above was NO, please complete the comments form below. 
 

Comments: 

 

 
 

 

116



 
 

 

 

117



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Reverter Clause for Parcel Number 23091 – Habitat of Humanity of Pitt County. 

Action Requested: Discussion and Council Recommendation. 

Attachment: Letter from Habitat for Humanity of Pitt County. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 6/3/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/3/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town deeded Habitat PN 23091 in 2009 with a reverter clause that if the property was not used in 5 
years to build a house for persons of low to moderate income it would revert back to the Town. Attached, 
please see the letter from Habitat for Humanity of Pitt County for your information. Keen Lassiter and I will be 
ready to walk the Council through the issues involving this matter.  

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Discussion and Council Direction. 

 

118



 
 
 
 
May 26, 2020 
 
Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Town of Winterville 
Winterville, NC 27858  
 
Dear Keen: 
 
I am writing this letter as a follow up to my email to you on May 3, 2020, and after subsequent phone 
calls from you, Crossland Homes, and Ms. Mattie Payton.  As you are well aware, Crossland Homes and 
Ms. Payton are very eager to place a new manufactured home on the lot Ms. Payton owns (parcel 
20330), with partial use of the lot owned next door by Habitat for Humanity of Pitt County (parcel 23091). 
Because of this, I receive calls from related parties 2-3 times a week asking about where things stand. 
 
Habitat for Humanity of Pitt County is not comfortable with being “in the middle” when it comes to the 
deeded property in our name and any future disposition of the same. We are fearful that any decision or 
discussion in a public town meeting related to this property and Ms. Payton may appear to be based on 
discriminatory factors that would not be in keeping with Habitat for Humanity’s procedures or guidelines.  
Therefore, we would like to be very clear on what we are asking the Town of Winterville to consider. 
 
Habitat for Humanity of Pitt County is asking for one of two courses of action to be considered at your 
next Town Council meeting for Pitt County parcel 23091, with the address of 2447 Chapman Street, 
Winterville, NC. 
 
1) Allow the specific deed restrictions pertaining to the use of the land to be rescinded so that Habitat for 
Humanity of Pitt County can use the land in accordance with normal and customary town ordinances or 
dispose of it as it sees fit. 
 
OR  
 
2) Enforce the deed reverter clause and reclaim the parcel for ownership by the Town of Winterville. If 
the town of Winterville would like to be involved in the vetting of the Crossland/Payton transaction this 
seems the appropriate route to be taken. 
 
As a matter of record, Habitat for Humanity of Pitt County has never built on this parcel because of the 
size and shape of the parcel. With only 50’ of road frontage, it is impossible to build a home with required 
setbacks unless the structure is constructed “shotgun style”. In many discussions with low income 
families, often they feel this type of home is reminiscent of a style and shape of residences of days gone 
by, and represents despair and inequality. With this in mind, we consciously avoid houses of this shape.   
 
Thank you for allowing me to clarify our request for consideration.   
 
 
 
J. Scott Johnson    
Executive Director  
 
Cc:  Executive Committee, HFHPC Board of Directors  

      
 

 

210 E. 14 Street, Suite D     ∙   Greenville, NC 27858   ∙   252.758.2947 
 

scott.johnson@habitatpittco.org   ∙   www.habitatpittco.org 

119



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Highway 11 Right of Way and Ditch Mowing Contract. 

Action Requested: Approval of Contract with Precision Lawn Care and Landscaping, Inc. 

Attachment: Final Bid Tab. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Town staff accepted bids on Thursday May 14, 2020 for the Town’s annual ditch maintenance and Highway 

11 right of way mowing contract. There were 2 bidders with the lowest being Precision Lawn Care and 

Landscaping, Inc. This was the second advertisement of the contract as there was only one bidder that 

submitted a bid the first time it was advertised. The lowest bidder is also the current holder of this contract 

and staff has experienced no issues. Staff recommends that the contract be approved with Precision Lawn 

Care and Landscaping, Inc. 

Budgetary Impact: The annual ditch maintenance will cost $15,904 and be budgeted for in the stormwater 
fund. The Highway 11 right of way mowing contract will cost $21,150 annually and be budgeted for in the 
General Fund. 

Recommendation: Approve contract with Precision Lawn Care and Landscaping. 

 

120



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

BID PROPOSALS FOR HIGHWAY 11 RIGHT OF WAY MOWING

BID TABULATION  

DESCRIPTION

Precision Lawn Care and Landscaping, Inc.  

5118 Country Lane                                             

Grifton, NC 28530

J and J Turf Services                          

PO Box 54                             

Simpson, NC 27879

ANNUAL DITCH MOWING $15,904.00 $17,956.00

ANNUAL HWY 11 MOWING $20,350.00 $23,650.00

ANNUAL HWY 11 TRASH PICKUP $800.00 $1,000.00

PROJECT TOTAL: $37,054.00 $42,606.00

121



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project – Engineering Contract Amendment #1. 

Action Requested: Approval of Engineering Contract Amendment. 

Attachment: Proposed Contract Amendment, Exhibit A – Detailed Cost Breakdown. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Engineering consultant working on the Chapman Street Culvert Replacement project has requested a 

contract amendment to cover additional costs related to an extension in the contract time. The proposed 

increase will allow the Engineer to continue performing on site construction inspection as well as 

construction administration on behalf of the Town. The project is nearly complete, however, the project will 

likely be completed a few weeks later than the original contract completion date due to weather and 

additional work that was necessary to complete the project. Staff anticipates the total project cost including 

engineering and construction costs coming in just under the total grant award amount including this 

engineering contract amendment. 

Budgetary Impact: 100% of this project, including all engineering fees and construction costs should be 
covered by the grant that the Town received. At this time staff does not anticipate the Town needing to 
contribute any funds unless there is a dramatic increase in the amount of asphalt that needs to be replaced. 

Recommendation: Approval of Amendment #1 to contract with Freese & Nichols. 

 

122



L:\Resources\OLCR\W\Winterville, NC\Chapman St Culvert Replacement\Amendment\PSA - Professional Services Agreement Amendment.docx 
 Rev. 4/19 

 
 
 

 
 AMENDMENT NO.  1 
Town of Winterville 
 

FNI PROJECT NO. WNT18387 
CLIENT CONTRACT REFERENCE N/A 

   DATE:  5/15/2020 
 
Project Name: Chapman Street Culvert Replacement 
 
Description of Services: FNI shall render professional services as set forth in Attachment SC. 
 
Amended Deliverables:  N/A 
 
Amended Schedule: Per Attachment SC 
 
Compensation shall be amended as follows:  A not to exceed amount of Nine Thousand Eight Hundred Thirty-Two 
Dollars ($9,832). 
 

Current Contract Amount: $157,940 

Amount of this Amendment: $9,832 

Revised Total Amount Authorized: $167,772 
 
 

The above described services shall proceed upon execution of this amendment.  All other provisions, terms and 
conditions of the Professional Services Agreement which are not expressly amended shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
 
FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC.     TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
 
 
BY:         BY:    

 
    
Print Name  Print Name 
 

TITLE:        TITLE:   
 
DATE:        DATE:   
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT  
 
 

123



   
 

L:\Resources\OLCR\W\Winterville, NC\Chapman St Culvert Replacement\Agree 
 SC-1 FNI  
  CLIENT  

 ATTACHMENT SC 
 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF CLIENT 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES:  FNI shall render the following professional services in connection with the 
Project as follows: 
 
Task 8 – Additional Construction Services for Extended Construction Duration of One (1) Month 
 
8.1 Pre-Construction Meeting 
      No additional services required 
 
8.2 RFI Responses and Shop Drawing Review 
      FNI will be available to respond to Requests for Information and review shop drawing submittals from the  
      contractor.  
 
8.3 Progress Meetings 
      FNI will facilitate up to one (1) additional progress meeting via conference call with the project team. 
 
8.4 Construction Oversight 
      FNI will utilize Ark Consulting Group to provide part-time construction oversight during the assumed   
      additional contract duration of four (4) weeks. These hours assume construction inspection an average 
      average of one full day per week (32 hours) and senior management oversight of up to 16 hours.   
 
8.5 Pay Application and Change Order Review 
      FNI will provide the Client with review of Change Order requests and one (1) additional contractor Pay  
       Application.  
 
 
TIME OF COMPLETION:  FNI is available to commence work on the Project immediately upon execution 
of this Agreement and agrees to continue construction management services for the assumed one (1) month 
construction duration extension.  
 
If FNI’s services are delayed through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to adjust contract schedule 
consistent with the number of days of delay. These delays may result in an adjustment to compensation as 
outlined on the face of this Agreement and in Attachment CO.  
 
 
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES: FNI and Client designate the following representatives: 
 
Client’s Designated Representative –  Travis Welborn, PE, Town of Winterville, Public Works Director, 2571 
Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590; Phone 252-215-2428; email travis.welborn@wintervillenc.com 
  
 
FNI’s Designated Representative –  David Webb, PE, Associate, 1017 Main Campus Drive, Suite 1200, 
Raleigh, NC 27606; Phone 984-201-0648; email david.webb@freese.com 
 
FNI’s Accounting Representative – Stephanie Kirchstein, 2711 N. Haskell Avenue, Suite 3300, Dallas, TX 
75204; Phone 214-217-2212; email stephanie.kirchstein@freese.com 
 

124

mailto:david.webb@freese.com
mailto:stephanie.kirchstein@freese.com


   
 

L:\Resources\OLCR\W\Winterville, NC\Chapman St Culvert Replacement\Agree 
 SC-1 FNI  
  CLIENT  

COMPENSATION 
 
SPECIAL SERVICES – Billed Hourly 
 

Description Estimated Fee 
Additional Construction Management Services Not-to-Exceed $9,832 

 
 
 
TIME AND MATERIAL RATES 

Upon written authorization from the Client for Additional Services, FNI shall adhere to the following Rate Schedule. 

 

Rate
Professional - 1 107
Professional - 2 130
Professional - 3 146
Professional - 4 169
Professional - 5 197
Professional - 6 225
Construction Manager - 1 85
Construction Manager - 2 111
Construction Manager - 3 131
Construction Manager - 4 164
CAD Technician/Designer - 1 91
CAD Technician/Designer - 2 117
CAD Technician/Designer - 3 145
Corporate Project Support - 1 87
Corporate Project Support - 2 105
Corporate Project Support - 3 139
Intern/ Coop 53
Senior Advisor 175

Rates for In-House Services
Travel
Standard IRS Rates

OTHER DIRECT EXPENSES:

These rates will be adjusted annually in February.  Last updated February 2018.
1022015

Schedule of Charges:

Position

Other direct expenses are reimbursed at actual cost times a multiplier of 1.15. They include outside printing and reproduction
expense, communication expense, travel, transportation and subsistence away from the FNI office and other miscellaneous
expenses directly related to the work, including costs of laboratory analysis, test, and other work required to be done by
independent persons other than staff members. 

125



Freese and Nichols, Inc.

Town of Winterville Project Fee Summary

Chapman Street Culvert Replacement

5/18/2020

Detailed Cost Breakdown

Tasks Labor Subconsultants Total

David Webb Julie Daniel Sam Beavans

$197 $111 $130

8 Special Contract Administration (Addt'l 4 weeks) -$                -$                -$                

8.2 Special Additional Shop Drawing Reviews and RFIs 2 4 4 10 1,358$             -$                1,358$             

8.3 Special Additional Progress Meeting Agenda 0.5 1 2 210$                -$                210$                

8.3 Special Additional Progress Meeting 1.5 1.5 3 462$                -$                462$                

8.4 Special
Additional Coordination with Ark & Construction 
Oversight ($6,480)**

2 8 10 1,282$             -$                1,282$             

8.5 Special
Additional Pay Application Review and Change Order 
Review / Processing / Coordination

4 12 16 2,120$             -$                2,120$             

-$                -$                -$                

Construction Oversight (Addt'l 4 weeks) -$                -$                -$                

**Adam 1 x Wk@$65/hr + Bryan 1/2 day x Wk@$145/hr -$                4,400               4,400$             4,400$             

-$                -$                -$                

-$                -$                -$                

-$                -$                -$                

-$                -$                -$                

-$                -$                -$                

-$                -$                -$                

-$                -$                -$                

-$                -$                -$                

-$                -$                -$                

-$                -$                -$                

-$                -$                -$                

                  10                   27                     4                   -   41                 4,400$             

 $          1,970  $          2,942  $             520  $               -   5,432$             4,400$             4,400$             9,832$             

Total Effort

Total Hours / Quantity

Total Effort

Total Hours
Total Labor 

Effort

Ark Consulting 
Group

Total Sub 

Effort

Basic Services 4,400$                                   

Special Services 5,432$                                   

Phase Task
Basic or 

Special

Total Project 9,832$                                   

Task Description

1 of 1 L:\Resources\OLCR\W\Winterville, NC\Chapman St Culvert Replacement\Amendment\Exhibit A 5/18/2020

126



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project – Change Order #1. 

Action Requested: Approval of Change Order #1 w/ Chatham Civil Contracting. 

Attachment: Proposed Change Order, Change Order Documentation. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 6/1/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Chapman Street Culvert Replacement Project is nearing completion. The Contractor has submitted a 

Change Order request due to additional work that was necessary to complete the project to this point. 

Additional work that will be encompassed by this change order includes but is not limited to extra restrained 

joint ductile iron water main to avoid a conflict with the new storm drainage, replacement of an existing fire 

hydrant that was in conflict with the proposed storm drain, full testing and chlorination of the water main drop 

down assembly due to the Covid 19 virus, and additional select backfill due to unsuitable native soils 

adjacent to the existing residences and within the roadway. The total change order request is $45,411.06. 

Budgetary Impact: 100% of this project including all engineering fees and construction costs should be 
covered by the grant that the Town received. At this time staff does not anticipate the Town needing to 
contribute any funds unless there is a dramatic increase in the amount of asphalt that needs to be replaced. 

Recommendation: Approval of Change Order #1 with Chatham Civil Contracting. 

 

127



# Description QTY UOM Unit Price Total

1 yard inlet at down stream end 1 ls 1,260.00$              1,260.00$               
2 export unsuitable soils - non road 256.73 cy 15.00$                    3,850.95$               
3 additional select fill - road 982.00 cy 15.00$                    14,730.00$             
4 class ii rip rap 58.53 tn 70.00$                    4,097.10$               
5 full chlorination & testing of waterline 1 ls 7,451.21$              7,451.21$               
6 additional crew for water shut down 1 ls 1,844.96$              1,844.96$               
7 hydrant 1 ls 6,026.84$              6,026.84$               
8 6IN waterline over run 41 LF 150.00$                 6,150.00$               

Total 45,411.06$             

Time Change Request

* rain days 7
* additional work - yard inlet, hydrant, import/export 5
* waterline testing 2

total days this request 14

Chapman Street Culvert - Change Order #1

128



Full Chlorination of Waterline 1 LS
Description Qty UOM Rate Tax Total

Labor
Downtime for Testing & Notificaitons 4 DY 1,310.40$                            1 5,241.60$                                   

Materials
Invoice M179601 1 LS 123.50$                                1 123.50$                                      
Invoice M175727 1 LS 844.24$                                1 844.24$                                      

-$                                             
Subtotal Cost 6,209.34$                                   

OH and P 20.0% 1,241.87$                                   
Total Cost 7,451.21$                                   

Total 7,451.21$                                   
Bid Submitted 7,451.21$                                   

Additional Crew for Shut Down 1 LS
Description Qty UOM Rate Tax Total

Labor
Installation 1.173 DY 1,310.40$                            1 1,537.10$                                   

-$                                             
Subtotal Cost 1,537.10$                                   

OH and P 20.0% 307.42$                                      
Total Cost 1,844.52$                                   

Bid Submitted 1,844.96$                                   

Hydrant (Material Invoice Attached) 1 LS
Description Qty UOM Rate Tax Total

Labor
Installation 1 DY 1,310.40$                            1 1,310.40$                                   

Materials
Hydrant and Risers 1 LS 3,711.97$                            1 3,711.97$                                   

-$                                             
Subtotal Cost 5,022.37$                                   

OH and P 20.0% 1,004.47$                                   
Total 6,026.84$                                   

Bid Submitted 6,026.84$                                   

129



130



131



132



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: 2020 Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation Project. 

Action Requested: Award of Engineering Contract to Rivers & Associates, Inc. 

Attachment: Statement of Qualifications. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 6/1/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Town received a zero interest 20-year loan award, in the amount of $1,974,200.75 with $500,000 being 

approved for principal forgiveness, from the Division of Water Infrastructure in the spring of 2020 for a 

Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation Project. The first step in meeting the required project milestones 

is to select an Engineering firm to develop the Engineering Report, Environmental Documentation, 

Construction Plans and Specifications, as well as perform Construction Administration and Inspections. 

Staff received one proposal to perform the work. Staff also received emails from two other engineering firms 

that were directly solicited declining to submit on the project. Staff concurred that Rivers & Associates, Inc. 

presents the project familiarity, experience, technical expertise, scheduling and staffing to complete this 

project for the Town. 

Budgetary Impact: The project costs, including Professional Services, has been approved for funding 
through the NCDENR – DWI Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The Town received a zero percent interest 
20-year loan award in the amount of $1,974,200.75 with $500,000 being approved for principal forgiveness. 

Recommendation: Select Rivers & Associates, Inc. and direct staff to begin contract negotiations. 

 

133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Ange Plaza, Lots 20 & 21 – Final Plat. 

Action Requested: Approval of Final Plat. 

Attachment: Final Plat. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

Ange Plaza, Lots 20 & 21 – Final Plat: 

 

Location: Beacon Drive east of its intersection with Winterville Parkway. 

 

Parcel Numbers: 76141 

 

Site Data: 2 Lots, 2.57 Acres 

 

Zoning District: General Business 

 

 Planning and Zoning Board recommended approval of the Final Plat at the May 18, 2020 

meeting. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Recommend Approval of the Final Plat. 

 

170



M.B. 79, PG. 78

ANGE PLAZA MB 66, P 145

ANGE PLAZA

D.B. 3077, PG. 222

D.B. 480, PG. 558

COLLICE & ANN MOORE, LLC

14
17

27

MB 62, P 162

(COMMON AREA)

ANGE PLAZA

EASEMENT

UTILITY

5' DRAINAGE /

(M.B. 66, PG. 123)

EASEMENT
30' DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

UTILITY

10' DRAINAGE /

EASEMENT

UTILITY

5' DRAINAGE /

EASEMENT

UTILITY

5' DRAINAGE /

UTILITY EASEMENT

10' DRAINAGE /

EASEMENT

EGRESS

28' INGRESS/

EASEMENT

EGRESS

38' INGRESS/

DB 3077 PG 222

ANN MOORE, LLC

COLLICE AND 

C
L
E

A
N

O
U

T

O
V

E
R
 S

A
N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

S
E

W
E

R
 E

A
S

E
M

E
N

T

5
' 
x
 1

0
' 
S

A
N
IT

A
R

Y
 

ACRES

0.8747

38,100 SF

22

EASEMENT

EGRESS

28' INGRESS/

1.2397 ACRES

21

1.3292 ACRES

20

MB 84, P 110

ANGE PLAZA

22

MB 66, P 145

ANGE PLAZA

23

EGRESS ESMT.

40' INGRESS/

BEACON DRIVE
(60'PUBLIC R/W - 40' BC/BC)

NOTE 7)

(PRIVATE, SEE

EASEMENT

15' DRAINAGE

EGRESS ESMT.

40' INGRESS/

OFSHEET

OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION

CERTIFICATE

02/03/20WCO

1"= 100'

PROJECT NO. , DRAWING NO.P-567

SITE DATA

2

GENERAL BUSINESS

TOTAL AREA

NUMBER OF LOTS CREATED

PARCELS

ZONING

AREA IN PARKS, RECREATION

AREAS AND THE LIKE 0.00 ACRES

2.5689 ACRES

NORTH CAROLINA

MAP FOR RECORD

WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP     PITT COUNTY

1 1

MALPASS  & ASSOCIATES

(252) 756-1780
GREENVILLE,   N.C.   27858

1645 E. ARLINGTON BLVD., SUITE D
NC LICENSE NO. C-1289

WKM

SURVEYED:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

CEP CEPAPPROVED:

DATE:

SCALE:

VICINITY MAP
1"= 1000'

0

GRAPHIC SCALE

100 50 100 200

1"= 100'

REVIEW OFFICER SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE

1
1
4
9
-

N
O

R
T

H
 

M
I
L
L

1708-FIRETOWER

1
1
4
8
-
P
I
T
T
 
T
E

C
H

1130-VERNON WHITE

N
C
 
1
1
 
(

M
E

M
O

R
I

A
L
 

B
L

V
D
)

BEACON DRIVE

N
C
 
1
1

R
A
I
L

R
O

A
D
 
E

X
T

SITE

COUNTY OF PITT

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA

CARLTON E. PARKER           PLS 2980REVIEW OFFICER

DATE

NAME

NAME

NAME

SAID PLAT.

FOREVER ON ALL AREAS AS SHOWN OR SO INDICATED ON 

PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS, OPEN SPACES AND EASEMENTS

HEREBY ESTABLISH ALL LOTS AND DEDICATE ALL STREETS,

PLAN OF SUBDIVISION WITH MY (OUR) FREE CONSENT AND

OF WINTERVILLE AND THAT I (WE) HEREBY ADOPT THIS

THE PROPERTY IS WITHIN THE JURISDICTION OF THE TOWN

OF THE PROPERTY SHOWN AND  DESCRIBED HEREIN, THAT

I (WE) HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM (WE ARE) THE OWNER(S)

, 2020DATE:

REQUIREMENTS FOR RECORDING.

CERTIFICATION IS AFFIXED MEETS ALL STATUTORY

COUNTY, CERTIFY THAT THE MAP OR PLAT TO WHICH THIS

, REVIEW OFFICER OF PITTI,

, 2020, A.D.DAY OF

LICENSE NUMBER AND SEAL THIS

AMENDED. WITNESS MY ORIGINAL SIGNATURE,

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS

REFERENCED ON PLAT. THAT THIS PLAT WAS

AS BROKEN LINES PLOTTED FROM INFORMATION AS

THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT SURVEYED ARE SHOWN

RATIO OF PRECISION AS CALCULATED  IS 1:10,000+;

SURVEY BY ME OR UNDER MY SUPERVISION, THAT THE

DRAWN UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL

I, CARLTON E. PARKER, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS

DRAWING

PROGRESS

REFERENCE DEED BOOK 3748, PAGE 300 OF THE PITT COUNTY REGISTRY

P567MFR-LOT21_22-REVISED.DGN

LEGEND

EIP = EXISTING IRON PIPE

EIS = EXISTING IRON STAKE

MNS = MAGNETIC NAIL SET

NPS = NO POINT SET

       = NEW IRON STAKE UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

76141

ANGE PLAZA - LOTS 20 & 21
CERTIFICATE OF FINAL APPROVAL

BY THE PLANNING BOARD

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

DATE

MAYOR, TOWN OF WINTERVILLE CHAIRMAN, WINTERVILLE PLANNING BOARD

DATE

THIRTY (30) DAYS OF THIS DATE.

SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS. MUST BE RECORDED WITHIN

PURSUANT TO AUTHORITY OF SECTION 154.13 OF THE

ON THIS THE                  DAY OF                                          ,2020

OF THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA,

APPROVED FOR RECORDING BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN

THE                DAY OF                                           2020.

OF THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE ON

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL BY THE PLANNING BOARD

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS FINAL PLAT WAS

CARLTON E. PARKER 

THAT HAS AN ORDIANCE THAT REGULATES SUBDIVISIONS.

SUBDIVISION OF LAND WITHIN A COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY

      I  HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY CREATES A

(252) 231-2588

GREENVILLE, NC 27834

SUITE 116

4300 SAPPHIRE COURT

COLLICE AND ANN MOORE LLC

(252) 714-8653

BATH, NC 27808

3 REST HAVEN ROAD EXTENSION

CEDAR LANDING PROPERTIES, LLC

PHONE:

 

ADDRESS:

 

OWNER:

 

     OWNERS ASSOCIATION.

     OF WINTERVILLE OR THE ANGE PLAZA PROPERTY 

     AND IS NOT THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE TOWN

     WITHIN THE COLLICE & ANN MOORE, LLC PROPERTY

     OWNER/OWNERS OF THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

     EASEMENT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE 

     WITHIN THE PROPOSED 15' PRIVATE DRAINAGE 

     MB 62, P 162.  MAINTENANCE OF ANY PIPE LOCATED

     POND LOCATED ON THE ANGE PLAZA (COMMON AREA) 

     ACCESS TO THE COMMON STORMWATER DETENTION 

     15' PRIVATE DRAINAGE EASEMENT ALLOWS DRAINAGE

     LOCATED JUST EAST OF LOT 20.  THE PROPOSED

     PROPERTY APPROXIMATELY 3.3 ACRES IN SIZE

     BENEFIT OF THE COLLICE & ANN MOORE, LLC

     A PRIVATE DRAINAGE EASEMENT FOR THE 

     IN THE NORTHEASTERN CORNER OF LOT 20 IS 

7)  THE PROPOSED 15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT LOCATED

     AISLES AND DRIVEWAYS AS CONSTRUCTED.

     THE MAP ARE TO BE CENTERED ON DRIVE

6)  INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENTS AS SHOWN ON

     RECORDED IN MAP BOOK 84, PAGE 110.

5)  THIS MAP SUPERCEDES ANGE PLAZA LOT 21 AS

 

     APPROVAL OF THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE.

     DEDICATED EASEMENT WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN

     IMPERVIOUS SURFACES, SHALL ENCROACH WITHIN ANY

     COLLECTION CONTAINERS, MAIL RECEPTACLES AND

     PLANTINGS, FILL MATERIALS, DEBRIS, SOLID WASTE

     ANTENNAS, MASTS, AERIALS, MONUMENTS, LANDSCAPE 

     FENCES, WALLS, MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT, CANOPIES, 

     ADDITIONS OR APPURTENANCES THERETO, SIGNAGE, 

     TO PRINCIPAL AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND 

     MATERIALS AND SURFACES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED

4)  NO BUILDINGS, STRUCTURES, OR OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, 

     IMPROVEMENTS AS NOTED IN NOTES 4 AND 7  BELOW.

     EXCEPTION OF THE 15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT AND 

     CENTERED ON IMPROVEMENTS AS INSTALLED WITH THE 

     PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. AND ARE

     SHOWN HEREON ARE DEDICATED TO THE ANGE PLAZA

3)  DRAINAGE EASEMENTS AND DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS

     SIDE AND REAR PROPERTY LINES.

     DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENT ALONG FRONT,

2)  THE TOWN OF WINTERVILLE REQUIRES A MINIMUM 5' 

     IS 0.9998872.

     GRID CORRECTION APPLIED. COMBINED FACTOR

1)  ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND WITH NO

NOTES:

193.00'

M
B
 4
6
, P

G
 1
5
0

E = 2,474,446.87

N = 656,283.99

NAD 83 (2001)

NCGS MONUMENT "REEDY"

1
,7
9
1
.2
0
' 

990.71' (T
IE
)

COASTLINE RAILROAD

OF NCSR 1130 AND SEABOARD

CENTERLINE INTERSECTION

1
,7
9
0
.8
5
'  

G
R
ID

NPS

4.20'

2
9
5
.8

0
'

E=2,476,073.36

N=657,033.47

NAD 83(2011)

EIS

R/W

R/W R/W

193.00'

180.00'

180.00'

127.00' (TIE)

6'4'

5' 5'

SCALE 1" =40'

SEWER EASEMENT

5' x 10' SANITARY

EASEMENT

SEWER 

SANITARY

5' x 10' 

3
0
0
.0

0
' 
 T

O
T

A
L

R/W

171



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Reappoint Board of Adjustment Members with Expiring Terms. 

Action Requested: Reappoint Portia Willis & Brian Miller to Board of Adjustment. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The following Board of Adjustment Members have terms that will expire on June 30, 2020: 

 Portia Willis 

 Brian Miller 

Ms. Willis and Mr. Miller have both expressed their desire to be reappointed to the Board of Adjustment. If 
reappointed, their terms would expire in three years (June 30, 2023). 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Reappoint Portia Willis and Brian Miller to three year terms. 

 

172



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Reappoint Planning and Zoning Members with Expiring Terms. 

Action Requested: Reappoint Margie Crawford & Willie Lee Hines to Planning and Zoning Board. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☐ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The following Planning and Zoning Board Members have terms that will expire on June 30, 2020: 

 Margie Crawford 

 Willie Lee Hines 

Ms. Crawford and Mr. Hines have both expressed their desire to be reappointed to the Planning and Zoning 
Board. If reappointed, their terms would expire in three years (June 30, 2023). 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Reappoint Portia Willis and Brian Miller to three year terms. 

 

173



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Reappoint Recreation Advisory Board Members with Expiring Terms 

Action Requested: Reappoint Randy Bowers, Kirby Bryson, and Michael Guglielmelli to Recreation 
Advisory Board 

Attachment: Applications on file. 

Prepared By: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks and Recreation Date: 5/27/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/2/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) is made up of six (6) resident members, three (3) non-resident (ETJ) 
members, and one (1) alternate member that may be a resident or non-resident.  

The Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) has three (3) members whose term expiration is June 30, 2020 and 
have requested to be appointed to an additional term. Following is list of said members and their 
membership type: Randy Bowers (Resident), Kirby Bryson (Resident), and Michael Guglelmelli (Resident). 

Staff recommends that all current members, as listed above, be appointed to an additional two (2) year term 
on the Recreation Advisory Board, their terms would expire June 30, 2022. 

Staff would like to note that there are two applications on file in which applicant indicated interest in 
Recreation Advisory Board: 

 Amy Brothers - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as number one (1) priority. 

 Brandy Daniels - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as number four (4) priority. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Reappoint Randy Bowers, Kirby Bryson, and Michael Guglielmelli to Recreation 
Advisory Board 

 

174



175



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

Request for Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees of the Town of Winterville 

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in 
more than one board, please list them by preference by using numbers (1, 2, 3, etc.) 

Board of Adjustment Planning and Zoning Board 

Recreation and Parks Advisory Board Stormwater Advisory Committee 

 Require in-town residency or in the Town’s ETJ to be appointed to any volunteer board.

Name:  _____________________________________________________________________  

Address:  ___________________________________________________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Home Phone #:  Business Phone #:  ________________________  

Email Address:  

Employed By:  _________________________  Occupation:  __________________________  

Name of High School Attended:  _________________________________________________  

College or University Attended:  _________________________________________________  

How long have you been a resident of Winterville?  ____________  

Have you served on a board/commission of the town? (      ) Yes (      ) No 

If yes, please indicate which one(s):  ______________________________________________  

Current membership in organization and offices held:  ________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Past membership in organizations and offices held:  __________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

State why you feel you would be an asset to this board/commission.  ____________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________

Signature:  ____________________________________  Date:  ________________________  

Please return to: Town of Winterville Town Clerk’s Office PO Box 1459 Winterville, NC 28590 
or email don.harvey@wintervillenc.com with the completed application. 

This information requested below is optional: 

Ethnic Group: Sex: ______ Female ______ Male 
________ African American 
________ American Indian US Citizenship: ______ Yes ______ No 
________ Asian or Pacific Islander 
________ Caucasian Birth Date: ____________________ 
________ Hispanic 

and guest services. 

Open Door Church/Member, CEASE/Member

Received 5/6/2020 DAH

176

mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Appointment of Dylan Brinkley & Brandy Daniels to Stormwater Advisory Committee. 

Action Requested: Approval of appointment. 

Attachment: Application on file. 

Prepared By: Travis Welborn, Public Works Director Date: 6/3/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/3/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020 

Supporting Documentation 

The Stormwater Advisory Committee currently has 1 vacancy for a full time member. Mr. Dylan Brinkley is 

currently an alternate member and staff recommends promoting him to a full time member. Brandy Daniels 

has requested appointment to the Stormwater Advisory Committee and staff recommends appointing her as 

an alternate member if Mr. Brinkley is promoted to a full time member. 

Budgetary Impact: No Impact. 

Recommendation: Approval of appointments to Full Time & Alternate position. 

 

177



178



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: June 8, 2020 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Update on Funding for Winterville Watermelon Festival. 

Action Requested: Approval of Recommendation. 

Attachment: NA. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 6/3/2020 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/3/2020 ☒ TM: 6/3/2020 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/3/2020

Supporting Documentation 

As the Council is aware, the Winterville Watermelon Festival has been cancelled for 2020 due to the effects 
of the COVID-19 Pandemic. Alton Wadford contacted me about what the Town would like the Festoval 
Committee to do with the $50,000 allocation the Town gave the Committee for the 2020 Festival. 

My recommendation was that the Festival keep the $50,000 already paid to them for the 2020 Festival and 
use that towards the 2021 Festival, under the condition that the Committee withdraw their request for funding 
in the FY 2020-2021 Annual Budget. Mr. Wadford agreed with my recommendation. 

Therefore, I am asking Council to approve my recommendation for the record and in order to give the 
Committee a formal written answer as to such. 

Budgetary Impact: As presented. 

Recommendation: Council approve Town Manager’s recommendation. 

179


	00-20200608_Agendav2
	06_a_Abstract_Evans_Proclamationv2
	06_b_Proclamation_LaRue_Evans
	07_a_Presentation_Abstract_Neuse_River_HMPv2
	07_b_Final Mitigation Strategies_Pitt Co
	07_c_Resloution_20-R-061_Neuse_River_Basin_Reg_HMP
	08_1a_PH_Abstract_Ange_Plaza_Lot_21_Annexv2
	08_1b_Ange Plaza - Lot 21 Annexation Petition
	08_1c_Ange Plaza - Lot 21 Annexation Map
	08_1d_Ange_Plaza_Lot_21_Annex_Legal_Description
	08_1e_Ange_Plaza_Lot_21_Cert_of_Suff_exec
	08_1f_Ordinance_20-O-061_Ange_Plaza_Lot_21_Annex
	08_2a_PH_Abstract_Evergreen_Rezoningv2
	08_2b_Rezoning_Application
	08_2c_Evergreen_Const_Rezoning_Request_Staff_Report
	10_1a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	10_1b_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_2020511_Draft
	10_1c_Budget_Work_Session_Minutes_20200526_Draft
	10_1d_Budget_Work_Session_Minutes_20200527_Draft
	10_1e_Budget_Public_Hearing_Minutes_20200601_Draft
	10_2a_Consent_Abstract_Schedule_Merizio_PHv2
	10_2b_Merizio_Rezoning_Application
	10_2c_Merizio_Rezoning_Map
	10_2d_Merizio_Rezoning_Legal_Description
	10_2e_Merizio_Rezoning_Staff_Report
	10_3a_Consent_Abstract_Schedule_Shrine_Club_PHv2
	10_3b_PC_Shrine_Club_Rezoning_Application
	10_3c_PC_Shrine_Club_Rezoning_Map
	10_3d_PC_Shrine_Club_Rezoning_Legal_Description
	10_3e_PC_Shrine_Club_Rezoning_Staff_Report
	10_4a_Consent_Abstract_Budget_Amendmentv1v2
	10_4b_Budget Amendment 2019-2020-7v2
	11_1a_New_Abstract_2020-2021_Budget_Ordinancev2
	11_1b_Budget Ordinance 2020-2021v2
	11_2a_New_Abstract_20-21_SRO_Contractv2
	11_2b_Winterville SRO 2020-2021 Contract Draft 20200501
	11_3a_New_Abstract_Chapman_St_Reverter
	11_3b_Chapman_St_Lot_Reverter_Clause_ltr
	11_4a_New_Abstract_Hwy_11_Mowing_Contractv2
	11_4b_Hwy_11_Mowing_Final_Bid_Tab
	11_5a_New_Abstract_Chapman_St_Eng_Amend_
	11_5b_Professional_Services_Agreement_Amendment_#1
	11_5c_Exhibit_A_Cost_Breakdown
	11_6a_New_Abstract_Chapman_St_Chatham_CO_
	11_6b_Chapman Street Culvert_CO#1_Revisedv2
	11_6c_CO#1 backup 6.1.20v2
	11_7a_New_Abstract_Sewer_Rehab_Eng_Servicesv2
	11_7b_Rivers and Assoc. - SOQ - PS Rehab
	11_8a_New_Abstract_Ange_Plaza_2021_Final_Platv2
	11_8b_Ange_Plaza_Lots_20&21_Final_Plat
	11_9a_New_Abstract_BoA_Appointmentsv2
	11_10a_New_Abstract_PZ_Appointmentsv2
	11_11a_New_Abstract_RAB_Appointmentsv2
	11_11b_20191025_Daniels_Brandy_(P_A_S_R)
	11_11c_20200506_Brothers_Amy_(R)
	11_12a_New_Abstract_Stormwater_Advisoryv2
	11_12b_20191025_Daniels_Brandy_(P_A_S_R)
	11_13a_New_Abstract_Watermelon_Festival_Fundingv2

	dhFormfield-1747035753:       x
	dhFormfield-1747043509: Amy Brothers
	dhFormfield-1747045278: 623 Bayberry Lane, Winterville, NC 28590
	dhFormfield-1747046554: 252.481.2064
	dhFormfield-1747047839: 978.308.2460
	dhFormfield-1747049229: aabrothers360@gmail.com
	dhFormfield-1747050377: AIM Global Enterprises, LLC
	dhFormfield-1747050930: Owner
	dhFormfield-1747052518: Northeastern High
	dhFormfield-1747052636: Elizabeth City State University
	dhFormfield-1747052865: 13 years
	dhFormfield-1747057177:  x
	dhFormfield-1747057757: Toastmasters International/Member, 
	dhFormfield-1747059611: 
	dhFormfield-1747059906: I'd like to add value to our
	dhFormfield-1747060117: community by contributing several years of experience in project management, event planning
	dhFormfield-1747061462: 05/06/2020


